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The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2020.

Principal activities

The principal activities of Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) are set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results

The Group's loss for the year and the Group's financial position at 31 March
2020 are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 100 to 188.

Directors

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Lee George LAM (Chairman)

Karen CHAN Ka-yin

Duncan CHIU

LAU Chun-kong

LING Kar-kan

Hendrick SIN

Rosana WONG Wai-man

Victor NG Chi-keung (appointed on 1 April 2019)
Charleston SIN Chiu-shun (appointed on 1 April 2019)
Eric YEUNG Chuen-sing (appointed on 1 April 2019)
Annie CHOI Suk-han (appointed on 30 July 2019)
Christopher CHAOQ Yu-hang (appointed on 1 April 2020)
Ivy CHEUNG Wing-han (appointed on 1 April 2020)
Michael LEUNG Kin-man (appointed on 1 April 2020)
CHEUK Wing-hing (resigned on 12 April 2019)

Millie NG KIANG Mei-nei (appointed on 12 April 2019

and resigned on 30 July 2019)

Philip CHAN Ching-ho (retired on 31 March 2020)
Humphrey CHOI Chor-ching (retired on 31 March 2020)
Davey CHUNG Pui-hong (alternate director to Annie CHOI Suk-han,
appointed on 30 July 2019)

(alternate director to Millie NG KIANG Mei-nei,

appointed on 12 April 2019 and resigned on 30 July 2019)
(alternate director to CHEUK Wing-hing, resigned on 12 April 2019)

There being no provision in the Company's Articles of Association in
connection with the retirement of directors by rotation, all existing Directors
continue in office for the following year.
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Directors (continued)

The persons who were directors of the subsidiaries of the Company during
the year and up to the date of this report (unless otherwise stated) were:

Peter YAN King-shun
LEE Kok-ming
WONG Kiu-hei (alternate director to Peter YAN King-shun)

Directors’ interests in shares and debentures

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Company'’s directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ interests in transactions, arrangements or
contracts

No director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to the business of the
Company to which the Company or any of the Company's holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

Management contracts

Save for the management agreement of Le Meridien Cyberport, the facilities
management agreement and the system operation contract, no other
contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the businesses of the Company and its subsidiaries were
entered into or existed during the year.

Permitted indemnity provision

During the year and up to the date of this report, the permitted indemnity
provision as defined in section 469 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
for the benefit of the directors of the Company was in force. The Company
has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for the directors’ liabilities
in respect of any legal actions against its directors arising out of corporate
activities.
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Auditor

Ernst & Young retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment. A
resolution for the reappointment of Ernst & Young as auditor of the Company
will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Lee George LAM
Chairman

Hong Kong
30 July 2020
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Independent Auditor’s Report
IR AZ IR &

EY::

Independent auditor’s report

To the member of Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
BB ABEERRAR

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hong Kong
Cyberport Management Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 100 to 188, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2020,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2020, and of
its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Information other than the consolidated financial statements
and auditor’s report thereon

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the report of the
Directors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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Information other than the consolidated financial statements
and auditor’s report thereon (continued)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the consolidated financial
statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
IR AZ IR &

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group'’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
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responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
30 July 2020

TERASEITIE o HANNTARMNEITER
ABEERTIE ©

BMNESEZ=/H (HREE) HiFpIitEE K
8 > UREREFEITRIAHATHE » HPEEHA]

EREITIREPFMRABEENERNERTEZ
L o

A =3t Ip

A
202078308

A9 2019/20 4R

99



100

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

o A0 L
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Year ended 31 March 2020 #;Z2020F3831HIEEE

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SZermElmE

Year ended 31 March 2020 #ZE2020FE3831HIEEE

2020
HK$
BT

2019
HK$
BT

2020 2019
Notes HK$ HK$
hp=S BT BT
REVENUE A 4 478,264,533 509,547,500
Other net income HAU A SRER 4 35,731,925 47,335,291
513,996,458 556,882,791
EXPENSES BEFORE PUBLIC MISSION KitARER BT H R

ACTIVITIES EXPENSES AND rBZZH

DEPRECIATION
Building management expenses Y EIES H (159,133,049) (151,254,179)
Staff costs RIMA 5 (102,402,072) (101,615,660)
Government rent and rates AR R =1 9 (16,881,122) (14,509,109)
Other operating expenses HhEELZH (82,662,362) (100,046,060)
Finance costs 1 55 25 6 (154,787) (2,834)

(361,233,392) (367,427,842)
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE PUBLIC Rt AR ERENZ H K

MISSION ACTIVITIES EXPENSES AND TIBZ&EEHF

DEPRECIATION 152,763,066 189,454,949
Public mission activities expenses NREEETIX 10 (153,418,150) (133,357,811)
Fair value loss on a debt investment at BARMEBEIT ARG Z

fair value through profit or loss RERBAANMETIR (2,305,517) =
OPERATING (LOSS)/PROFIT KiHFIBMNEAE (TiR)

BEFORE DEPRECIATION bl (2,960,601) 56,097,138
Depreciation Einll=! (137,511,547) (132,648,616)
LOSS BEFORE TAX PRFAI SR 6 (140,472,148) (76,551,478)
Income tax FriS# 11 - -
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FRTH (140,472,148) (76,551,478)

Cyberport 2019/20 Annual Report

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME

Other comprehensive (loss)/income that will not be

reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:

- Changes in fair value of equity investments
designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR

FASH

HithzmE (S5H) /W

THEERET=ERDLER T
zEM2m (5H) /W
—EBERAANETAEM

EEWEZRAREZ

RAMEZER

FRHEMZE (51R)
Y (GOERAIL)

FREETHREE

(140,472,148)

(6,492,498)

(76,551,478)

14,569,725

(6,492,498)

14,569,725

(146,964,646)

(61,981,753)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
SAEMSRRER SEMSIRRR

As at 31 March 2020 F202053531H As at 31 March 2020 F2020%E3831H

2020 2019 2020 2019
Notes HK$ HK$ Notes HK$ HK$
ME BT BT /5p=d BT BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS JERBhE = NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES JEREh iR
Property, plant and equipment Wl ~ B8RRI H 13 2,834,964,584 2,869,506,312 Development maintenance fund kBHEEES 22 390,999,654 397,612,582
Right-of-use assets fEFARGR = 14(a) 6,606,435 = Deferred rental payable IBIER (SRS - 222,775
Deferred rental receivables BIEN N FE & 7,274,144 8,503,155 Lease liabilities TRER R 14(b) 4,955,359 -
Cyberport Macro Fund investments DB RO B SR 15 99,768,100 54,866,109
Investments in securities EEias 16 84,074,954 70,830,649 Total non-current liabilities JEmEh A RS A 395,955,013 397,835,357
Prepayments and deposits PSRRI R % & 18 22,999,823 27,755,272
Net assets RERE 3,341,028,686 3,481,380,404
Total non-current assets JETRBh A= B8 3,055,688,040 3,031,461,497
EQUITY Wz
CURRENT ASSETS SRR Share capital [EZS 23 300,000,002 300,000,002
Inventories =15 319,821 337.411 Reserves it 3,041,028,684 3,181,380,402
Trade receivables N7 U =R 17 19,780,948 10,986,266
Prepayments, deposits and ST ~ R Total equity et BER 3,341,028,686 3,481,380,404
other receivables EAth N W Er I 18 26,514,196 20,999,761
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries I EEX =N 27(b) 3,293,234 261,000
Investments in securities IS 2R 16 708,251,929 680,463,448
Cash and bank balances MERIRITER 19 417,576,079 647,997,733
Lee George LAM Victor NG Chi-keung
Total current assets MENERE 2] 1,175,736,207 1,361,045,619 ML (L
CURRENT LIABILITIES TS 1R Rl Director
Trade payables VAR 41,976,221 28,514,375 _— LR
Other payables and accruals ELfh B FRI R R 1t 2% B 20 101,432,350 148,158,795
Rental and other deposits e REMTE 21 94,797,218 82,132,286
Amount due to the immediate VA NP2 /NI
holding company 27(b) 254,293,578 254,293,578
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary MNAF—8][E &M E A B = I 27(b) - 192,321
Lease liabilities AR AR 14(b) 1,941,181 -
Total current liabilities MRS E 494,440,548 513,291,355
NET CURRENT ASSETS MENEE = AE 681,295,659 847,754,264
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES &= S &URRE A = 3,736,983,699 3,879.215,761
Cyberport 2019/20 Annual Report 378 2019/20 FEk 103
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
SEaNm TR

Year ended 31 March 2020 #;Z2020F3831HIEEE

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
el Rex

Year ended 31 March 2020 #ZE2020FE3831HIEEE

HK$3,041,028,684 (2019: HK$3,181,380,402) in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Cyberport 2019/20 Annual Report

(20194F : 3,181,380,402787T) °©

Share Capital Fairvalue  Accumulated Total
capital reserve reserve losses equity
A AnfEE  ARANERS ZISH NEEH
Notes HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
M BT BT BT AT BT
At 1 April 2018 F2018F481H 2 5,366,157,807 - (2124211676 3241886,135
Loss for the year ERTIR - - - (76,551,478) (76,551,478)
Other comprehensive income for the year: FRNEMEEWE
- Changes in fair value of equity investments ~ —3SERASNET AH
designated at fair value through other 2EYEZREAREZ
comprehensive income, net of tax ARNEZE) (NRRHIR) = = 14,569,725 = 14,569,725
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRZESREN - - 14,569,725 (76,551,478) (61,981,753)
Subtotal It 2 SMGITTE L5975 (2200823152) 3179904382
Issue of shares RkH 23 300,000,000 - - - 300,000,000
Transfer from development maintenance HEBEBESRIEE
fund to capital reserve ATNESS 2 - 1,476,022 - = 1,476,022
At 31 March 2019 and at 1 April 2019 F2019538318 K
F20195481H 300,000,002 5,367,633,829* 14,569,725  (2,200,823,152)* 3,481,380,404
Loss for the year ENTIR - - - (140,472,148)  (140,472,148)
Other comprehensive loss for the year: FNEMZESHR
- Changes in fair value of equity investments ~ —3SERASNET AH
designated at fair value through other 2EYEZREAREZ
comprehensive income, net of tax ARNEZ) (NRFHI) - - (6,492,498) - (6,492,498)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FAZESREN - - (6,492,498)  (140,472,148)  (146,964,646)
Subtotal INF 300,000,002  5,367,633,829 8,077,227 (2,341,295,300)  3,334,415,758
Transfer from development maintenance HEBEBESRIEE
fund to capital reserve RS 2 - 6,612,928 - - 6,612,928
At 31 March 2020 F2020F3831R 300,000,002  5,374,246,757* 8,077,227  (2,341,295,300)* 3,341,028,686
& These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of — * ZEEEKEOREEEVSRIRRZEEMEE3,041,028,68478 7T

2020 2019
Notes HK$ HK$
hp=S BT BT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES ZEFENZUERE
Loss before tax FREAI SR (140,472,148) (76,551,478)
Adjustments for: JAEE -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Yl ~ W28 RIS EITIH b 135,595,484 132,648,616
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EANE~TIA 6 1,916,063 -
Realisation of government grants BTN (4,297,395) (2,000,000)
Interest income from financial assets at PR A DI 2 & 7
amortised cost, net of amortisation HFEH B W AR
of premium I 4 (3,376,292) (9,574,292)
Interest income from investments at fair BARMEITARTZ
value through profit or loss S ERF B WA 4 (20,935,716) (16,411,555)
Fair value loss/(gain) on a debt investment BARMEIT AR
at fair value through profit or loss RERBNRNE
S (W) 2,305,517 (340,024)
Net realised/unrealised losses/(gains) on BARMEIT ARmZ
investments at fair value through BEABZ RTH
profit or loss = (&) #E 4 3,090,074 (3,978,725)
Interest income on bank deposits RITERF B WA 4 (9,146,004) (6,601,200)
Impairment of trade receivables 7 LS K R ORR 1 6 48,507 48,658
Reversal of impairment of trade receivables 7 U K OB (B4R (2] 6 (60,908) (803,259)
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEYI ~ NBBRIEE
plant and equipment, net B Z SHEMm 6 153,327 744,357
Finance costs 445 25 B 154,787 2,834
Revaluation losses/(gains) on investments CREMTHR (W) 996,824 (248,646)
(34,027,880) 16,935,286
Decrease in deferred rental receivables IRIER AR R 1,229,011 3,886,524
Decrease in inventories FERD 17,590 202,398
Increase in trade receivables 57 S Tk SR 68 10 (8,782,281) (1,807,169)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and FUSFERIN ~ 2 R HA
other receivables 7 U =R I 0 (16,100,683) (22,907,376)
(Increase)/decrease in amounts due NI EZRMEB AT
from fellow subsidiaries I (1g00) R (3,032,234) 638,937
Increase in trade payables Rz R38N 13,487,886 194,394
(Decrease)/increase in other payables EL A R A FRI R R
and accruals A OR) /1810 (47,875,990) 48,735,269
(Decrease)/increase in an amount due NABERB AT
to a fellow subsidiary I CRiZL) 1800 (192,321) 192,321
Increase/(decrease) in rental and other deposits FH% R E i@~ Cril) 12,664,932 (3,067,709)
Decrease in deferred rental payable BBIEN SR - (46,900)
Cash (used in)/generated from operations &8 A/ FEzils (82,611,970) 42,955,975
Interest on lease liabilities HEAGRHE (154,787) =
Net cash flows (used in)/from gEEs (FrA) =&z
operating activities MEHEFT (82,766,757) 42,955,975
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
gellEnak

Year ended 31 March 2020 #;Z2020F3831HIEEE

Notes

i3

2020
HK$

2019
HK$

BT

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of items of property,
plant and equipment

Prepayment and deposits paid for the purchase
of items of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of Cyberport Macro Fund investments

Deposit paid for the purchase of Cyberport
Macro Fund investment

Purchase of investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Purchase of financial assets at amortised cost

Proceeds from sale and redemption of financial
assets at amortised cost

Proceeds from disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from sale and redemption of
investments at fair value through
profit or loss

Interest income received from:
- Financial assets at amortised cost

- Investments at fair value through
profit or loss

- Bank deposits

Decrease/(increase) in time deposits with
original maturity of more than three months

Net cash flows from/(used in)
investing activities
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BREENZAERE
AL ~ HEE R &IE

WAL ~ HEsFig&IME
PRAS SRS FRI R e

PN CE N2 EoaellN 2= 2o as

TG A LS B H
REFIIRE

AR AN ET AR Z
BA

A PR AT K~
EREAF

R B El it s ATk

EREA PSS TRIN
HREMI ~ HlEERigETE

PRISRRIN
HERBEEIZAANETA

51 2 B PSR

BUFIBHA :

— PR AT K SRR

—BARMETTAREZ

£

— RITER
EISEA=IBU LS
EEREEURL  (E)

RAEMFRS  (FRA)
WERE SR

(96,641,012)

(10,888,302)
(39,570,276)

(395,718,342)

(14,331,839)

(63,430,752)

(12,940,534)
(7,866,009)

(14,129,730)

(338,154,071)

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

SERUTRER

Year ended 31 March 2020 #ZE2020FE3831HIEEE

151,188,111 281,062,645
- 2,000
213,575,419 307,169,990
5,477,885 13,534,168
25,562,253 10,284,236
8,712,784 6,601,200
358,873,875 (358,873,875)
206,240,556 (176,740,732)

2020 2019
Notes HK$ HK$
hp=S BT BT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES W SEhZMERE
Proceeds from issue of shares EITRRD RN 23 - 300,000,000
Government grants received BWEF I EE 6,853,195 1,679,965
Principal portion of lease payments HENRZAEZED 25(b) (1,874,773) =
Capital element of finance lease e e AN AN oA
rental payments - (1,577,476)
Interest element of finance lease RhRFAER SRR SIS
rental payments - (2,834)
Net cash flows from financing activities W43 EIFRIS IR &R E 1350 4,978,422 300,099,655
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND MERIMEZF BB ILINEZE
CASH EQUIVALENTS 128,452,221 166,314,898
Cash and cash equivalents at the FYzRERNEEENH
beginning of year 289,123,858 122,808,960
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZNERMEEENE
AT THE END OF YEAR 417,576,079 289,123,858
ANALYSIS OF BALANCE OF CASH NERMEZENBEERAN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances as stated in the FEMSKREFMININER
consolidated statement of financial position RIT4E 19 417,576,079 647,997,733
Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity FIHKENRERIIEHEEN="A
of more than three months when acquired M EZ RIERERER 19 - (358,873,875)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the SFellERERMINIER
consolidated statement of cash flows MEZEEFEME 417,576,079 289,123,858
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

W S HARMEE

Corporate information

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited (the "Company”)
is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. The registered
office of the Company as at 31 March 2019 was located at Units 1102-
1104, Level 11, Cyberport 2, 100 Cyberport Road, Hong Kong and was
subsequently changed to Level 6, Cyberport 2, 100 Cyberport Road,
Hong Kong with effect from 6 January 2020.

The principal activity of the Company is to support and promote
innovation and technology development in Hong Kong through the
creation of a comprehensive ecosystem of digital technology companies.

With a vision to build Cyberport as a main force in developing the
digital technology industry as a key economic driver of Hong Kong (the
“Vision"), the public mission of the Company are anchored on three
strategic directions:

= Nurtures youth and start-ups by providing comprehensive
entrepreneurship programmes and early stage funding;

= Scales digital technology companies with Cyberport's global
network; and

= Connects enterprises, SMEs and the public in fostering digital
economy.

Under the Group’s relentless pursuit of excellence, the Group takes
a pragmatic and comprehensive approach in realising its Vision. To
ensure the line-up of services is dynamic and flexible in meeting the
needs of budding technology entrepreneurs, investor community and
industry talents, the Company actively builds strong partnerships with
leaders from technology industry, academia, research institutes and
professional bodies.

To further extend the Group's entrepreneurial support to scalable start-
ups, the Company has launched the Cyberport Macro Fund (“CMF")
for Hong Kong-based digital entrepreneurs in 2017. With an initial size
of HK$200 million, the CMF aims to accelerate the growth of digital
technology start-ups. As an investment fund that targets to co-invest in
Cyberport digital entrepreneurs with other private and public investors
as seed to Series A stage funding, the CMF also aims to encourage the
development of a venture capital ecosystem for start-ups in Hong Kong.
Further details of the investments made up to the end of the reporting
period are included in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

Corporate information (continued)

The Group has established various teams (“Operating Teams”) to
achieve the above public mission. The expenses incurred by Operating
Teams that contribute to the successful running of the public mission
activities are disclosed in note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Company is a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Hong Kong
Cyberport Development Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in
Hong Kong and is wholly owned by the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region ("HKSAR") via The Financial Secretary
Incorporated.

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of Issued ordinary
Name incorporation share capital
B R AR BRITEBRAE
Cyberport Macro Fund Limited Hong Kong HK$1
) 1787
CMF One Limited Hong Kong HK$1
&E 187
CMF Two Limited Hong Kong HK$1
&E 17T
CMF Three Limited Hong Kong HK$1
5% 87T
CMF Four Limited Hong Kong HK$1
) 17T
CMF Five Limited Hong Kong HK$1
& =
CMF Six Limited Hong Kong HK$1
&5 1E7T
CMF Seven Limited Hong Kong HK$1
B 17
CMF Eight Limited Hong Kong HK$1
e 17T

SElSIREME

NEIEFE )

RIAB ERARESD > AEFAEMILEH
A (“EBEI”) o EBHEAAMHENA
B ENTABNT S TaM SRz
SE10WE o

RRABAEEILBREERERRAS (F
BREMBALHBEBEINTHX (58
BX”) BREIMEENERE2ABENA
8) zBEE2EMBAR -

BXKMEABNZER
ARBZWBABEIFBENT ¢

Percentage of equity Principal
attributable to the Company activities

KRR ANEE AL FEVS

Direct Indirect
H#E (5
100 - Investment holding

RAZR

= 100 Investment holding

RAZR

= 100 Investment holding

RRER

= 100 Investment holding

Egreeding

= 100 Investment holding

QAR

= 100 Investment holding
BRER

= 100 Investment holding

RALR

= 100 Investment holding

RAZR

= 100 Investment holding

S RER
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.1

W S HARMEE

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, a debt investment
at fair value through profit or loss and equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income which have been measured at
fair value. These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of the
Group.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2020. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Group. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee
(i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee).

When the Group has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the
voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Group, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date
that such control ceases.

Cyberport 2019/20 Annual Report

2.1

fmiH B

ZEGEVSREDBEEBRITITAZM
mzEBUSKREEN (" FEBVSREE
W) (BEMEEBVSIREEN - FEB=
HENRIER) ~ EBRINRITHENKES
(RBEZB) R o BRI RNET ART
ZERMEF ~ BAANETTAREZHSR
RRBARNETT AR MEEWE 2 RAR
R RANMEITEIN » MSIRFRTHIZH LM
FERE o ZEZAMSIRELABTT (98
7T) 25 BT EAERZIEERT

SEEE
SEMSIRROEBEAADREMB AR (K
RARER) FTEHE2020FEBNHIEEE
ZMERE o B ASIemAEF EZE
BIEH 2 RE (BIEEMMESRR) o YL
A%k BB SWIRE AT~ £ 2B EREAEB
RSB REREA X Bk BB EH BT HIT
WERER ZNAFEZE LR (BT ARE
HIESWRAAETEXENZMBENZ
IBSAF]) BY > MIFRAZIEFIAN o

UAEABEZEREBAEWRRASTESH
ZRENFELUNFA » FEASEWRAIEE
FELRBERMITHEER T WA LA
A Bl4E

() SERAHSHEMKENFEAZEY
25

(b)  EBEENLHREZNRF 5 K&
@ AFEAZRENRBEREN

WEABNMSIRED TS AERARRZR
HHARA—BHISHBERER - BB AR
52 B AEFBUS IR G REH{T5 S
SNk > BRFRGETIIKEEZIERINE LS
BALE °

2.1

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

Basis of preparation (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (i) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair
value of the consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group's share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained
profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements
e SIRETRME

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for the

first time for the current year’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

HKFRS 16 Leases

Amendments to HKAS 19
Amendments to HKAS 28

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11,
HKAS 12 and HKAS 23

Except for the amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 19 and HKAS 28, and
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle, which are not

relevant to the preparation of the Group's consolidated financial

statements, the nature and the impact of the new and revised HKFRSs

are described below:

(a)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15
Operating Leases - Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating
the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a
Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires
lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet
model to recognise and measure right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities, except for certain recognition exemptions. Lessor
accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from
HKAS 17. Lessors continue to classify leases as either operating
or finance leases using similar principles as in HKAS 17. For a
sublease arrangement, the classification of the sublease is made
by reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head
lease, instead of by reference to the underlying asset. HKFRS 16
did not have any significant impact on leases where the Group is
the lessor.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective method with the date of initial application of
1 April 2019. Under this method, the standard has been
applied retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initial
adoption recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance
of accumulated losses at 1 April 2019, and the comparative
information for 2019 was not restated and continued to be
reported under HKAS 17 and related interpretations.

Cyberport 2019/20 Annual Report
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued)

(continued)
New definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right to obtain substantially all
of the economic benefits from use of the identified asset and the
right to direct the use of the identified asset. The Group elected
to use the transition practical expedient allowing the standard
to be applied only to contracts that were previously identified as
leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 at the date of initial
application. Contracts that were not identified as leases under
HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 were not reassessed. Therefore, the
definition of a lease under HKFRS 16 has been applied only to
contracts entered into or changed on or after 1 April 2019.

As a lessee - Leases previously classified as operating leases

Nature of the effect of adoption of HKFRS 16

The Group has lease contracts for various items of office
premises, office equipment and information technology facilities.
As a lessee, the Group previously classified leases as either
finance leases or operating leases based on the assessment of
whether the lease transferred substantially all the rewards and
risks of ownership of assets to the Group. Under HKFRS 16, the
Group applies a single approach to recognise and measure right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities for all leases, except for two
elective exemptions for leases of low-value assets (elected on a
lease-by-lease basis) and leases with a lease term of 12 months
or less (“short-term leases”) (elected by class of underlying
asset). Instead of recognising rental expenses under operating
leases on a straight-line basis over the lease term commencing
from 1 April 2019, the Group recognises depreciation (and
impairment, if any) of the right-of-use assets and interest
accrued on the outstanding lease liabilities (as finance costs).
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SElSIRENE SElSIREME

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued) 2.2 RITEERKREBELZR () 2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued) 2.2 RITEBERRILEE DN (4)

(@) (continued) (@ @& (@) (continued) (@ &

As a lessee - Leases previously classified as operating leases
(continued)

Impact on transition

Lease liabilities at 1 April 2019 were recognised based on the

EREMEA — Ao L RNEEREN
S (&)
bopEi=Ac]

F2019F 481 BB E A RTHIRIER

Financial impact at 1 April 2019

The impact arising from the adoption of HKFRS 16 at 1 April 2019
was as follows:

F20195F48 1B S 200

T2019F4B1HRAB BV SIRE A
NEE16SFRF=ERIZ MM T

present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using RAEARILT2019F48 1 HH G Inereess e
the incremental borrowing rate at 1 April 2019 and separately ERAMETMIERIA > HOFE Wi CRb)
o NTSN v [ 3
presented in the consolidated statement of financial position. The FEMBIRRKRATIK o FBRENES = e
right-of-use assets were measured at the amount of the lease EHRERMAGENSIITE » HiERER HK$
liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease 2019 F 4B 1 HATFEEaMBIRT RN BT
payments relating to the lease recognised in the consolidated WA 5 AR X BRI TS SR 1+ AR
statement of financial position immediately before 1 April 2019. BAREIHITIHEE
Assets g
All these assets were assessed for any impairment based on FIEZERFETZEREBE BT Increase in right-of-use assets and
HKAS 36 on that date. The Group elected to present the right-of- EN 365 FAERDBEEL TR o & increase in total assets (EFARGR = 18 10 R 3R R S AR 0 8,238,082
use assets separately in the consolidated statement of financial EFRBEBRBERANEF D AESRS
. Mot 42 30> MK o
position. W S5 R RA T Liabilities fafR
\ | iabilit e
The Group has used the following elective practical expedients REFAF2019FLB 1 BN BEEMS Increase in lease liabilities AR R IR 8,486,897
when applying HKFRS 16 at 1 April 2019: REENE 16 S EEAUTEEN Decrease in trade payables 7 5 TR R (26,040)
KRB A - Decrease in deferred rental payable BN (SRS m (222,775)
Applying the short-term lease exemptions to leases with Y??*ﬁﬁﬁ@?ﬂ*ﬁ}l‘?ﬁﬁzﬂ_ﬁm Increase in total liabilities L S T 8,238,082
a lease term that ends within 12 months from the date of MNE WL IERNFAERN AR EAHE
initial application RE%R
The lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019 reconciled to the operating F2019F 4B 1B 2 AT A5 F2019%38
Vi (et i o) e iotte] e (et e e (e WEYERER  RIFAEN lease commitments as at 31 March 2019 are as follows: JINHZEERFEABEWKNT -
contract contains options to extend/terminate the lease VRN > MFEEEEHEL
HK$
Applying a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with YEESEBLSIENHEEA e
o o P o npee BT
reasonably similar characteristics aXRARE—ITIME
Operating lease commitments as at 31 March 2019  F2019%3831HZREHRE%KIE 10,497,757
Less: Commitments relating to short-term leases and B, | 55 HATH & K FISTHER
those leases with a remaining lease term F2020FE38 31 HI Z ALk LE
ended on or before 31 March 2020 ZHERBEXRWEE (1,968,608)
8,529,149
Weighted average incremental borrowing rate F2019F 481 H Z I F 191818
as at 1 April 2019 (B F = 2.18%
Discounted operating lease commitments and F2019F 4B 1 HZBIRIESE
lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019 TR AIB AR A R 8,486,897
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.2

2.3

W S HARMEE

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued)

(b) HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 addresses the accounting for income taxes
(current and deferred) when tax treatments involve uncertainty
that affects the application of HKAS 12 (often referred to
as “uncertain tax positions”). The interpretation does not
apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of HKAS 12, nor
does it specifically include requirements relating to interest
and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments.
The interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether an
entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately; (ii) the
assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax
treatments by taxation authorities; (iii) how an entity determines
taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused tax losses,
unused tax credits and tax rates; and (iv) how an entity considers
changes in facts and circumstances. The Group determined
that the interpretation did not have any impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group.

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong financial
reporting standards

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business'
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework*
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform'

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture®

Amendment to HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions’

Amendments to HKAS 1 and Definition of Material’

HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 16 Proceeds before Intended Use*
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract*

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, HKFRS 16
2018-2020 Cycle and HKAS 41¢

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

8 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong financial
reporting standards (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance on the
definition of a business. The amendments clarify that for an integrated
set of activities and assets to be considered a business, it must include,
at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create output. A business
can exist without including all of the inputs and processes needed to
create outputs. The amendments remove the assessment of whether
market participants are capable of acquiring the business and continue
to produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether acquired inputs
and acquired substantive processes together significantly contribute
to the ability to create outputs. The amendments have also narrowed
the definition of outputs to focus on goods or services provided to
customers, investment income or other income from ordinary activities.
Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance to assess whether
an acquired process is substantive and introduce an optional fair
value concentration test to permit a simplified assessment of whether
an acquired set of activities and assets is not a business. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 April 2020.
Since the amendments apply prospectively to transactions or other
events that occur on or after the date of first application, the Group will
not be affected by these amendments on the date of transition.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 address the effects of
interbank offered rate reform on financial reporting. The amendments
provide temporary reliefs which enable hedge accounting to continue
during the period of uncertainty before the replacement of an existing
interest rate benchmark. In addition, the amendments require
companies to provide additional information to investors about their
hedging relationships which are directly affected by these uncertainties.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 April 2020. Early application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group's consolidated
financial statements.

Amendment to HKFRS 16 exempts lessees from having to consider
individual lease contracts to determine whether rent concessions
occurring as a direct consequence of the covid-19 pandemic are lease
modifications and allows lessees to account for such rent concessions
as if they were not lease modifications. It applies to covid-19-related
rent concessions that reduce lease payments due on or before 30 June
2021. The amendment does not affect lessors. The amendment is to be
applied retrospectively and is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 June 2020. Early application is permitted, including in
consolidated financial statements not authorised for issue at 4 June
2020. The amendment is not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group'’s consolidated financial statements.
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Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong financial
reporting standards (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new definition of
material. The new definition states that information is material if
omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected
to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements.
The amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or
magnitude of information. A misstatement of information is material
if it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions made by
the primary users. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
prospectively from 1 April 2020. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, a debt investment at fair value through profit or loss, and equity
investments at fair value through other comprehensive income at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either
in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of
a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the consolidated financial statements are categorised within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation technigues for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, financial assets
and deferred tax assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's or cash-
generating unit's value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal,
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only
if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than
the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit
or loss in the period in which it arises.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(a)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

0! the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the
other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to
the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group
or to the parent of the Group.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure
for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the
asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value
over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

Buildings Over the period

of the lease
Building services and support facilities 10%
Information technology facilities 20%
Centres equipment 20% - 33'/,%
Leasehold improvements 10%
Furniture and equipment 10% - 20%
Motor vehicles 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain
or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 April 2019)

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or

contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract

conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period

of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for

all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.

The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and

right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a)

(b)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available
for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the
end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease at the present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price
of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate.
The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or
a rate are recognised as an expense in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 April 2019) (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

(c)

Lease liabilities (continued)

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest
and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is
a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in lease
payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments resulting from
a change in an index or rate) or a change in assessment of an
option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
its short-term leases (that is those leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option). Lease payments on short-term leases
are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or

when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an

operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the

risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified

as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease

components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to

each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental

income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms

and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to

its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and

arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the

leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis

as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the

period in which they are earned.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 April 2019) (continued)
Group as a lessor (continued)

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, a sublease is classified as a
finance lease or operating lease with reference to the right-of-use asset
arising from the head lease. If the head lease is a short-term lease to
which the Group applies the on-balance sheet recognition exemption,
the Group classifies the sublease as an operating lease.

Leases (applicable before 1 April 2019)

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are accounted
for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of
the leased asset is capitalised at the present value of the minimum
lease payments and recorded together with the obligation, excluding
the interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held
under capitalised finance leases, including prepaid land lease payments
under finance leases, are included in property, plant and equipment,
and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases are charged
to profit or loss so as to provide a constant periodic rate of charge over
the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing nature
are accounted for as finance leases, but are depreciated over their
estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to profit or loss on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the
lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of any incentives
received from the lessor are charged to profit or loss on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms.
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset's contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group's business model for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially measures
a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at
the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with
the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it needs to give
rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
("SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with
cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are
held within a business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are
not held within the aforementioned business models are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset
is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably
its equity investments as equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income when they meet the definition of
equity under HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-
instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to the
statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income
in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend
can be measured reliably, except when the Group benefits from such
proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset,
in which case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive
income. Equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income are not subject to impairment assessment.
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity investments
which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value
through other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity investments
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are also
recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a financial
asset host is not accounted for separately. The financial asset host
together with the embedded derivative is required to be classified in its
entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group's consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates,
if and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership
of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses ("ECLs")
for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss.
ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows
due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows
from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL).
For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is
required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the
exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
When making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information.
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the following stages
for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting
date (but that are not purchased or originated credit-
impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk,
but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is
based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing component
and lease receivables, the Group chooses as its accounting policy
to adopt the simplified approach in calculating ECLs with policies as
described above.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and
borrowings and payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities at amortised cost
(loans and borrowings and payables)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in profit or loss.
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost method. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated
costs of disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and bank balances comprise cash on hand and at banks, including
term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not
restricted as to use.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for
a provision is the present value at the end of each reporting period of
the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.
The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of each reporting period between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.
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W S HARMEE

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods
that the costs, which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of
goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will be
entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the
customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception
and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur
when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of
goods or services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is
measured at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the Group with a significant financial benefit for more than one year,
revenue recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest method.
For a contract where the period between the payment by the customer
and the transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or less,
the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant
financing component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Hotel and management services

Revenue from the provision of hotel and management services is
recognised over the scheduled period on a straight-line basis because
the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group.

Revenue from food and beverage

Revenue from sale of food and beverages is recognised at the point
in time when the control of the assets is transferred to the buyer,
generally upon consumption of the food and beverage items by the
customer.

Other facilities services

Revenue from promotion, additional air-conditioning and chilled water
charge, license fee and other facilities charge is recognised over time
as services are rendered if the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group.

Revenue from event and venue fee, vetting and coordination fee,
tenants bus ticket and other premise fee is recognised at the point
in time when customer has obtained control of the service, generally
when the services are rendered.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as income in the accounting period in which they
are incurred.

Car park fee is recognised when the services are rendered.

Other incidental income and services income are recognised when the
income is entitled and services are rendered.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract
(i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to the customer).

Employee benefits
Retirement benefit scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Foreign currency transactions

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Group's functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the
consolidated financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by
the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
end of each reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions.

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration, the date
of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises
the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each payment
or receipt of the advance consideration.
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant accounting estimates

The preparation of the Group’'s consolidated financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

Estimation uncertainties

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group performs review for impairment of non-financial assets
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of the assets may not be recoverable.

The Group reviews certain indicators of potential impairment of these
assets such as reported sales and purchase prices, market demand
and general market conditions. The Group considers “Buildings held for
rental”, "Hotel building” and "Building services and support facilities”
as a portfolio of assets and identifies the cash-generating unit to which
the portfolio of assets belongs by referring to the valuation performed
by independent external valuers, after taking into consideration the net
income allowing for reversionary potential. The assumptions adopted in
the property valuation are based on the market conditions existing at
the end of the reporting period, with reference to current market sales
prices and the appropriate capitalisation rate.

Based on the Group's best estimates, no provision for impairment loss
on the non-financial assets is necessary.
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Significant accounting estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainties (continued)
Investments in securities

The Group follows the guidance of HKFRS 9 on initial classification of
non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturity as financial assets at amortised cost if the Group has
the intention and ability to hold such investments to maturity; or at fair
value through profit or loss if the investments are managed by external
fund managers and their performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis, and information about the investments is provided internally on
that basis to the Group's key management.

For financial assets at amortised cost, the Group evaluates its
intention and ability to hold such investments to maturity. If the Group
fails to keep these investments to maturity other than for specific
circumstances - for example, selling an insignificant amount close
to maturity - it will be required to reclassify the entire class as debt
investments at fair value through other comprehensive income.
The investments would, therefore, be measured at fair value not at
amortised cost.

For investments designated as at fair value through profit or loss, the
Group engages external fund managers to manage the investment
portfolio which is evaluated and reported internally on a fair value
basis. Accordingly, these investments are designated as at fair value
through profit or loss and are stated at fair value with subsequent
changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns (i.e., by geography, product type, customer type and rating,
and coverage by letters of credit and other forms of credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust the
historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For
instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic product)
are expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an
increased number of defaults in the financial services, media and retail
sectors, the historical default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date,
the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed.
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Significant accounting estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainties (continued)
Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables (continued)

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default
rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate.
The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and
forecast economic conditions. The Group's historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be
representative of a customer’s actual default in the future. The
information about the ECLs on the Group's trade receivables is
disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

Fair value of Cyberport Macro Fund investments

The unlisted equity investments and an unlisted debt investment
have been valued based on the recent market transaction prices,
market-based valuation technique and expected cash flows discounted
at current rates applicable for items with similar terms and risk
characteristics. The valuations require the Group to make estimates
about expected future cash flows, credit risk, volatility and discount
rates, and to determine the comparable public companies (peers) and
select the price multiple, and hence, they are subject to uncertainty.
The fair values of the unlisted equity investments and an unlisted debt
investment at 31 March 2020 were HK$91,921,406 and HK$7,846,694,
respectively. Further details are included in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant and
equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of items of property,
plant and equipment, the Group has to consider various factors,
such as technical or commercial obsolescence arising from change
or improvements in the provision of services, or from a change in
the market demand for the service output of the asset, the expected
usage of the asset, the expected physical wear and tear, the care and
maintenance of the asset, and legal or similar limits on the use of the
asset. The estimation of the useful life of the asset is based on the
experience of the Group with similar assets that are used in a similar
way. An adjustment of depreciation is made if the estimated useful lives
and/or residual values of items of property, plant and equipment are
different from previous estimation. Useful lives and residual values
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period based on changes in
circumstances.
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Significant accounting estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainties (continued)
Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a lease,
and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR") to measure
lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would
have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security,
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-
use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects
what the Group “would have to pay”, which requires estimation when no
observable rates are available (such as the Group that does not enter
into financing transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect
the terms and conditions of the lease (for example, when leases are
not in the Group's functional currency). The Group estimates the IBR
using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when available
and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates (such us the
Company's stand-alone credit rating).

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies.
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An analysis of revenue is as follows: WAZDHET :
2020 2019
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Revenue from contracts with customers BERGLIMA
Income from hotel operation BIEEEURA 92,786,366 124,922,563
Building management income Al EBEWA
- Management fee income — BB A 89,628,540 89,294,234
- Other facilities income — HAg A 24,104,714 19,159,438
206,519,620 233,376,235
Revenue from other sources B Rz A
Rental income RS WA
Variable lease payments that do not FHARBURFEIEEE,
depend on an index or a rate AR K NE N 6,267,562 7,577,207
Other lease payments, including HARNR > 81F
fixed payments ERNEN 250,968,235 254,394,380
257,235,797 261,971,587
Car park fee income TAEZRURA 14,232,358 13,998,390
Other incidental income HhZI1m A 276,758 201,288
271,744,913 276,171,265
478,264,533 509,547,500
(a) Disaggregated revenue information for revenue from (@) BERPEAWAZDEBAZER
contracts with customers
2020 2019
HK$ HK$
BT B
Type of services BRs52E8Y
Income from hotel operation BIEEEBWA
- Room income —EFPRA 44,962,542 72,386,629
- Food and beverage income — BmAEIEHEA 47,823,824 52,535,934
Building management income M EIBIA
- Management fee income — BEBEIA 89,628,540 89,294,234
- Other facilities income — HMIGHEU A 24,104,714 19,159,438
Total revenue from contracts with customers Z P S 4ULA S5 206,519,620 233,376,235
ADHE 2019/20 FIR
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4. Revenue and other net income (continued)

(a)

(b)

Disaggregated revenue information for revenue from
contracts with customers (continued)

4,

WA S B A& (5)

(a)

EFRFEHUBAZOERBAER

@)

2020 2019
HK$ HK$
BT Bt
Geographical markets hIBTH17
Hong Kong 58 206,519,620 233,376,235
Timing of revenue recognition I AFAIABTE]
Services transferred at a point in time FE I EREBZRS 63,034,579 63,148,412
Services transferred over time FEEY B3 1% 2 BRSS 143,485,041 170,227,823
Total revenue from contracts with customers Z P S4URA S ER 206,519,620 233,376,235

The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised in
the current reporting period that were included in the contract
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period:

TR FARSHPAAIATARS
HENRGERZ WA

2020 2019
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Revenue recognised that was included WAt AR SHT S
in contract liabilities at the beginning AP ZWA
of the reporting period:
Income from hotel operation BIEEITWA 1,979,225 3,302,947
Performance obligations (b) RBYHRE

Information about the Group’'s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Income from hotel operation

The performance obligation is satisfied over time when services
are rendered.

Revenue from food and beverages

The performance obligation is satisfied when the customer
obtains control of the promised goods, being at the point
when the customer consumes the food and beverage at the
restaurants. Payment of the transaction is due immediately at
the point when the customer consumes the food and beverage.
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Revenue and other net income (continued)

(b)

Performance obligations (continued)
Management fee income

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services are
rendered.

Other facilities income

The performance obligation is satisfied over time or at the point
in time as services are rendered.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied)
which amounted to HK$2,528,683 as at 31 March 2020 (2019:
HK$1,979,225) are expected to be recognised within one year.
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BASRETRHRS SRR
M °

HgralA

FRATIEREE B R TR HARSS
BYFETT ©

F2020F38318 » PEEFREL
2R KRRBOHA D ARET) =2
T 5 N 18 592,528,683 7T (20194 :
1,979,225/ 70) » AR T —F A

A ©

2020 2019
HK$ HK$
BT T
Other net income H AR A S5
Interest income from financial assets at R ATY| K 2 SRR
amortised cost, net of amortisation of ZFBULA - BRE NP
premium of HK$166,967 FH166,9678 7T (20194F ©
(2019: HK$1,688,840) 1,688,840787T) 3,376,292 9,574,292
Interest income from investments BARNEIT AREZ
at fair value through profit or loss ¥R ZFEBUWA 20,935,716 16,411,555
Interest income on bank deposits BITERZFEWA 9,146,004 6,601,200
Rental deposits forfeited Wz HeiZs - 3,437,237
Services income from fellow BRIBATZRS
subsidiaries (note) A (FE3E) 4,201,654 4,201,654
Net realised/unrealised (losses)/gains BAAMEITAREZ
on investments at fair value LRZ BT RTH
through profit or loss (T1) /W &5 (3,090,074) 3,978,725
Fair value gain on a debt investment BARMEITARTZ
at fair value through profit or loss RESRARANANER TR - 340,024
Foreign exchange differences, net SNCEE AR (5,096,946) (1,336,452)
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEY ~ MBS KIRE
plant and equipment Bz W= - 2,000
Bad debts recovered U [a] 3R Mk 790,113 3,321,797
Reversal of impairment of trade receivables  $&[BIR7 W=k 2 Bi{E 60,908 803,259
Government grants Bt EhE 880,000 -
Others Hith 4,528,258 -
35,731,925 47,335,291
S 2019/20 FIR
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SElSIRENE

4. Revenue and other net income (continued)

(b)

Performance obligations (continued)
Note:

On 24 May 2000, a portion of the Inland Lot No. 8969 at Telegraph Bay,
Pokfulam (the “Residential Portion") was assigned to Hong Kong Cyberport
(Ancillary Development) Limited ("HKCADL"), a fellow subsidiary, by Hong
Kong Cyberport Development Holdings Limited (the “immediate holding
company”). Pursuant to the services agreement dated 25 October 2003
entered into between the Company and HKCADL, fixed monthly services
income of HK$125,600 was received from HKCADL commencing from
November 2003 for the provision of services by the Company to facilitate
the operation of the Residential Portion. The fee was revised to HK$200,000
commencing from April 2006 and to HK$261,000 commencing from May
2008. The total amount received during the year was HK$3,132,000 (2019:
HK$3,132,000).

Pursuant to the services agreement dated 12 March 2005 entered into
between the Company and Skillful Limited, a fellow subsidiary, monthly
services income was received for the provision of information technology
and telecommunications services to the Residential Portion. The total
amount received during the year was HK$1,069,654 (2019: HK$1,069,654).

5. Staff costs

An analysis of staff costs is as follows:

4,

WA S B A& (5)

(b)

RYRE ()
M -

F20005F5H24H > BB EBELRRBRIE
KEAR (‘BERERAF) aEZRK
BABEBHEE MELXRE) BRAR
(“HKCADL”) #t t 58 £ K B0 28 735 [ 3t B
89695 H—Zfy L #h (“EEZBH”) © 1R
& 2 /A 5] SHKCADLF 1T 37 H #8 /920034
108258 Z RS Y > A ABRETI D
2 EiBRMARS 0 B2003FE 11 AFIAEA
FAHKCADLUY BX125,6007% 7T 2 [E & AR 55 Uk
A o E20065 44 52008458 B » LI UK
% 9 5I1& 17 9 & B 200,00078 7T K2261,000
BT o AFE B W R EN 3,132,000 7T
(20194 : 3,132,00087T) ©

RIBAABSRERMEAQBSKIillful Limited
FfriT iz B #892005438 128 Z RS X »
ERBRRET B DR R AR K BIRAR
SMmERWERSKA - KFEESW2E
791,069,654775 (20194E & 1,069,654787T) ©

BRI
BIMAZAHMT :

2020 2019
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Salaries and allowances e REN, 122,073,882 118,053,172
Unutilised annual leave FEAER 2,658,055 254,295
Retirement benefit scheme contributions IBREF T X 5,112,622 3,591,643
Staff benefits and other staff costs RITEFMAEMR A 1,161,760 2,337,485
131,006,319 124,236,595

Analysed into: baziivSie
Hotel IS 53,389,069 58,073,653
Corporate office NEIEL 49,013,003 43,542,007
102,402,072 101,615,660
Operating Teams (note 10) EizFBA (FE10) 28,604,247 22,620,935
131,006,319 124,236,595
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W SHARMEE

Loss before tax 6. PBRHBIAISHR
The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): RERZBFEBATTIRENR GTA) T3
mE :
2020 2019
Notes HK$ HK$
iihpzd BT BT
Rental income less outgoings of FHE W AR 215,277,822
HK$15,277,822 (2019: HK$13,050,309) #75 (2019 : 13,050,309
7T) (241,957,975) (248,921,278)
Cost of inventories FEZA 14,621,743 18,099,350
Depreciation of property, il ~ MR EITIR
plant and equipment 13 135,595,484 132,648,616
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERRETIR 14(a) 1,916,063 -
Minimum lease payments ZERETTITWRERENIR
under operating leases - 10,851,445
Lease payments not included in the AT AEEARITEN
measurement of lease liabilities iEA N 14(c) 2,711,686 -
Auditor’s remuneration ZEMEN & 310,000 328,701
Impairment of trade receivables MUK 2 R E 17 48,507 48,658
Reversal of impairment of R EIR U KRR 2 BB
trade receivables 17 (60,908) (803,259)
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEYI ~ NBERIRE
plant and equipment, net ME 2 SiR%E 153,327 744,357
Finance costs: 525
Finance charges on obligations MAEBEFERIBEZVSSZH
under a finance lease - 2,834
Interest on lease liabilities AEAGRZFE 154,787 =
Directors’ remuneration 7. EEHE

The emoluments of the Directors of the Group disclosed pursuant to

section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of

the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)

Regulation are as follows:

RIBEBABILHIFE383(NE R AT (HKE
BEENZAM) AMAIF2KEZAERHASE

EffEIT

2020 2019
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Directors’ fees EEEE - =
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e N R EF - -
Discretionary bonuses PIRTELL - =
Retirement scheme contributions IRRIT R - -
ADHE 2019/20 FIR
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AN SRENE MR
8. Five highest paid employees 8. LhBREMHER 10. Public mission activities expenses 10. ARfEHRENZ L
Details of the remuneration of the five non-director highest paid hEFESEESHFEACZMESFENT ! All direct and indirect expenses incurred for the primary and dominant MARBRNEEZENREEMSHREKH
employees are as follows: purpose of public mission and that contribute to the successful running FEVFTE R IDZE DA R Ea AP = 4 2 FR
of public mission activities as described in note 1 to the consolidated BEEREES KRN ARERERIE
2020 S financial statements are considered as public mission activities Ho BXZHEE :
expenses. Such expenses comprise:
HK$ HK$
A7 T 2020 2019
HK$ HK$
Salaries and allowances $re KON, 12,753,288 10,020,767 BT BT
Retirement benefit scheme contributions IRRERN T Xk 180,000 180,000
12,933,288 10.200,767 Staff costs NN 28,604,247 22,620,935
Information technology facilities maintenance fees = ERIGERFEH 29,422,785 29,104,324
i i i i = NIArSE: 1| 12 H R
The number of the non-director highest paid employee whose e AT T EE R B R STE S Financial assistance to industry start-ups mE R # e IR R B 64,457,195 47,450,404
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: BT : Programme expenses (seminars, trainings, TRIZH (FHTs ~ 83~
competitions, workshops and exhibitions) LR s TR RER) 31,275,521 31,819,555
b
2020 2019 Government rent and rates A Re =11 508,187 616,280
Public mission communications ARREEIET 7,216,218 7,358,381
Operating expenses ZFELH 5,882,120 6,326,122
FHZX = S -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001787%%2,000,000787T . Recovery of direct expenses (including government  REIE#EL H (EIEBUFHNED
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 75 %E2,500,00078 7T 3 1 grants of HK$3,417,395 (2019: HK$2,000,000)) #3,417,395%8 7T (20194 ©
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,0017&75 23,000,000 7T 1 1 2,000,000 7T)) (13,948,123) (11,938,190)
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,00178 752 4,000,00078 7T 1 -
153,418,150 133,357,811
5 5
9. Government rent and rates 9. HFEKREmM
An analysis of government rent and rates is as follows: MEREMZ AT -
2020 2019
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Hotel JAE 1,603,300 1,458,800
Corporate office naEmEL 15,277,822 13,050,309
16,881,122 14,509,109
Operating Teams (note 10) EiEIPA (F$7E10) 508,187 616,280
17,389,309 15,125,389
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11.

W S HARMEE

Income tax

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group did
not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the
year (2019: Nil).

A reconciliation of the tax credit applicable to the loss before tax at the
Hong Kong statutory rate to the tax amount at the Group’s effective tax
rate is as follows:

11.

FRiSHi

BT Ha&ERAREERLTTE BT EETN
BRGEN > WA THE BT ERIEHILE
(20194 : ) o

ERTREBEERERTEZGHRAISHRZ
MK e SRAERAL R RITEZ R
XHRRY0T

2020 2019
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Loss before tax

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

SElSIREME

BRHER T

BIERRINA T S ARz R0 T -

12. Deferred tax 12.
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:
Losses
available

for offsetting

against future

Depreciation
in excess
of related

depreciation

Tax credit at the Hong Kong statutory
tax rate of 16.5%

PRI S

BEBEEREI165%ITE
Z IR

(140,472,148)

(76,551,478)

(23,177,904) (12,630,994)

(1,875,688) (1,145,302)
523,099 1,725,765
24,530,493 12,050,531

Income not subject to tax BIUER 2 WA

Expenses not deductible for tax AEMNH X

Tax losses not recognised FBINZ BRI HR

Tax amount at the Group's effective tax rate BARERFALHETE 2
&

Cyberport 2019/20 Annual Report

taxable profits allowance Others Total
IR RIESH R8T
E P IVALS ) =S l=
@z S REZ T Hith 2t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
At 1 April 2018 F2018F481H (114,800,693) 114,933,231 (132,538) =
Deferred tax (credited)/ ERFHh= GFA)
charged to profit or OBR 7 BIERLIN
loss during the year (12,144,666) 13,259,678 (1,115,012) -

At 31 March 2019 and F20198F3831H K&

1 April 2019 2019%481H
Deferred tax (credited)/ FERFHR@ GtA)
charged to profit or loss HOBRZ BRI

during the year

(126,945,359)

(23,047,587)

128,192,909  (1,247,550) -

21,808,041 1,239,546 -

At 31 March 2020 F2020%3831H

(149,992,946)

150,000,950 (8,004) -

Deferred tax assets are not recognised for temporary differences
arising from tax losses carried forward due to uncertainty of realisation
of the related tax benefit through the future taxable profits. As at 31
March 2020, the Group had unrecognised tax losses of approximately
HK$2,390,000,000 (2019: approximately HK$2,233,000,000). The tax
losses have no expiry date and are yet to be agreed by the Inland
Revenue Department.

BT X AWM ERES BT R RAIRH EF L
MEXBIMA R WARSEEHINS IR
PR 2 BB E A B IER TR o
F20204F3831H » A& H Z K B IA B I
S R 49 592,390,000,0007 7T (20194F : £
2,233,000,0007% 7T) o B I 5 7 H L 2 H
B BAEHESEMIA o

A9 2019/20 4R
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AV SRENE LAMSRENE

13. ¥k ~ B RIKE

13. Property, plant and equipment 13. ¥k ~ MBKIEE &)

150

13. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Building Building
services Information services Information
Buildings Hotel ~ and support technology Centres Leasehold  Furniture and Motor Buildings Hotel ~ and support technology Centres Leasehold  Furniture and Motor
held for rental building facilities facilities equipment  improvements equipment vehicles Total held for rental building facilities facilities equipment  improvements equipment vehicles Total
HFRSS HFRES
R pilie LERN  EERERE PoRE  BRUHER  RMSRE & &t BT EEET SRR RRBERE PURE  BRUNE  RRSRE L] 8t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HiKS HKS HKS HK$ HK$ kS HKS HKS
A #n B A AT A B AT A AT A1 o AT A1 o Fi A7 AT
(note (iii)) (note (ii))
(W3 (i) (B3 Gi)
31 March 2020 020538318 31 March 2019 2019E3A318
At3TMarch 2019and  F201943831A K At T April 2018; FOBEAIR
Gl WI9ERIR: Cost iz IWIBIG  TAI 124686456 CGOSTMS 608624 MIBB MBS LIS 5APTENASS
Cost s ISETA2IT6 24931912 1264350171 230234722 60886254 171485488 193,484,489 930,137 5760432,949 Accumulated SR
Accumulated RitiA depreciation (1077994356)  (83374,676)  (115566956) (231615486 (60886256 (:8368583)  (125355609) (888.48)  (278030,400)
depreciation (1,155,137321)  (89,330,010) (1,164,904,220)  (222,077319)  (60,886,256)  (59,524,108)  (138,4443935) (622,470)  (2,890,926,637)
Net carrying amount KB4 2UMINVL0 19156326 69139500 18992179 S ITRTI0 52496303 49867 2909737035
Netcarryingamount T %(E 2401986455 185607902 99445951 15157403 - 111961380 55,039,554 307667 2,869,506,312
At T April 2018, FNIELAIE
At 1 April 2019, T09ERIR net of accumulated Mgt
netofaccumulated  FIRENTA depreciation 20 19156323 69139500 18,992,179 S TTI0 52496303 49867 290973705
depreciation 2401986455 185607902 99445951 15157403 - 111961380 5503955 307667 2,869,506,312 e 5B ) S BT 147022 SRS 7308 93164250
Additions i - - 13351343 6,612,928 - 29085900 53,563,167 - 102613338 Depreciation provided  EHERHF
Depreciation provided ~ EMIHRERA during the year (7162965)  (59553%) (9357262 (5310799) - (e (20463,147) (1420000 (132648616)
during the year (17142965)  (595533)  (12,235,670)  (5,294,727) - (187092m)  (18,115,517) (142,000~ (135,595,484) Disposal e ) B ) ) (210659) (535.70) (746.357)
Disposal fwrite-off HE /i - - (932,100 - - (260,580) (366,902) - (1,559,582)
At 31 March 2019, TNI9E3R31A »
At 31 March 2020, F2020E3B318 net of accumulated NBER
netofacumulated  MIREHA depreciation 2401986455 185607902 99445951 15,157,403 - 1TI961%80 5503955 307667 2869506312
depreciation 204843490 179,652,568 9962952 16,475,604 - 124077429 90,120,302 165,667 2,836,964,584
At31 March 2019: FN9EFINE
AL31 March 2020 TUNFIRNA: Cost ik ISR AL TRLIBOIT T2 0SB2E  ITIASSAE8 193484489 90137 5760432049
Cost s ISSTA23TT6 24937912 1206769416 243780330 60886254 200299806 245595799 930,137 5,860,323,428 Accumulated Bt
Accumulated ZithA depreciation (1155,137321) (893300100 (11649042200 (22077319) (60886256 (59524,108)  (13844t9%) (622470)  (2,890926,637)
depreciation (1232,280,286)  (95,285,344) (1,177,139,890)  (227,30,726)  (60,886,254)  (76,222,377)  (155,475,497) (764,470)  (3,025,358,844)
Netcarrying amount ~ WE%(E 2401986455 185607902 99445951 15,157,403 - TTI91380 5503955 07867 2869506312
Net carryingamount ~~ IKET%(E 204843490 179,652,568 9962952 16,475,604 - 124077429 90,120,302 165,667 2,836,964,584
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SElSIRENE

13. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Notes:

@)

(ii)
(iii)

(iv)

On 22 May 2000, the Government of the HKSAR granted the Inland Lot No.
8969 at Telegraph Bay, Pokfulam to the immediate holding company for a
term of 50 years at a lump sum initial premium of HK$1,000 and an annual
rent of an amount equal to 3% of the rateable value of the said Lot from
time to time.

On 24 May 2000, the Company entered into a sub-lease agreement with
the immediate holding company whereby a portion of the Inland Lot No.
8969 at Telegraph Bay, Pokfulam (the “Cyberport Portion”) is sub-leased to
the Company from the immediate holding company at nil rental.

The buildings are situated on the leasehold land granted.

Centres equipment represents equipment of Entrepreneurship Centre and
Technology Centre funded by government grant and used for the purpose
of the designated projects.

As at 31 March 2020, the fair value of the buildings held for rental
(together with the associated building services and support facilities)
amounted to HK$7,012 million (2019: HK$6,956 million). The aggregate
carrying value of such assets amounted to HK$2,424 million (2019:
HK$2,501 million). The fair value of the buildings held for rental (together
with the associated buildings services and support facilities) as at 31
March 2020 was determined based on a valuation carried out by Colliers
International (Hong Kong) Limited, an independent professional valuer.

The fair value of the buildings held for rental (together with the associated
building services and support facilities) falls within Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy and is determined using the income capitalisation
approach by discounting the expected rental income using a capitalisation
rate adjusted for the quality and location of the buildings.

Cyberport 2019/20 Annual Report

13. ¥k~ MBRIKE @)

ME -
0]

(i)
(iii)

(iv)

F20006E58 220 » EEBFXBUFEERZE
B AT — 1B AL T & kMM T A S
89695 > 1 ith » — M LI /91,00078
7T EARASE » MEFENASSTE
LT _E it ERBS PO RIR 2= I AR E3% o

F2000558248 » ZRBSEZERAT
TTIZ— 32D > B > ZATMER
ZERRAB DEEHEMW LT A MERB969S
Heph—#otith (BB ED”) » BHx%
I -

ZEEFATRIEBR L4 o

FORETRBRAH I RBH A TFIEE
Tz R RAOMEHR L2 IR

F20205E38318 » FHEFHBEEF (ERF
HEXZBFRSSZRIGH) 2ARNE
70.121Z 7 7T (20194F © 69.5612 3 JT) °©
ZE R 2 W B E 24626258 7T (2019
1 25.011287T) o ZEREHARTF (F
BEXZEFRS S5 EIGH) F20204F3
A3HZ AANEIRERLZ L EET
S HER LR (F8) BRATHEITZ
HEERE °

FEHBE#T (ERBEXZHEFRS 5
EGM) < RAANEBFARNES LT
ZHE=% HRBBARFCERERE
FENRBEMB REFT ZRZRRMRE
HIEBZ ARG RABE S WA
HH o

14,
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SElSIREME

Leases 14. A&
The Group as a lessee EEAERAETEA
The Group has lease contracts for office premises, office equipment, REAREEERERDAEY ~ HA
information technology facilities and storage area used in its EREMMEEMRIEHNEFXIIERES
operations. Lease of office premises has a lease term of six years, while A o DREYIHETINSRE > MHRE
office equipment, information technology facilities and storage area ®&E~ EERIRMAETFXNHAERNE
have lease terms of five years. There are several lease contracts that F o REFITAHIMARE A AR
include variable lease payments, which are further discussed below. HHETEEL > HE PsoH—Feit o
(a)  Right-of-use assets () fERANER
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and the REFNEEANE 2 KEEKRERN
movements during the year are as follows: TRl h -
Information
Office Office technology Storage
premises equipment facilities area Total
DRAEYL DAFRE FEEHEBLHE fEFExX Sy
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
As at 1 April 2019 F2019%4818 7,382,087 570,020 285,975 = 8,238,082
Additions hE = 157,754 = 126,662 284,416
Depreciation charge TIEFZ (1,554,120) (188,672) (95,325) (77,946) (1,916,063)
As at 31 March 2020 F2020FE3831H 5,827,967 539,102 190,650 48,716 6,606,435
#R578 2019/20 £E4R
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SElSIRENE

14. Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

(c)

Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements
during the year are as follows:

14, FHE

()

FERAFRERBEAN (1)

(b)

*E. R ] 1J\

G

RZIKEERFERNTEHIT

HK$
BT
Carrying amount at 1 April 2019 F2019F4B 1B ZKEE 8,486,897
New leases MIBFE 284,416
Accretion of interest recognised during the year FHAINZFI SR 154,787
Payments NET (2,029,560)
Carrying amount at 31 March 2020 F 202053831 HZ IKEE 6,896,540
Analysed into: AL S
Current portion TREhER Y 1,941,181
Non-current portion JERTNER 4,955,359
6,896,540
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 30(a) *ﬁ)ﬁ\)\ Bz $ﬁfg;gmjﬂ¢|§§

to the consolidated financial statements.

Mt3E30(a) N

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases (c) TFIRFPMBAEHWIAZESTUT :
are as follows:
2020
HK$
BT
Interest on lease liabilities HEEARHNE 154,787
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets ERNZEITIEAXS 1,916,063
Expense relating to short-term leases and BXREHPAERRTHEE
other leases with remaining lease terms ended F2020538 31 HF 2 AISEEN
on or before 31 March 2020 (included in public HMAEZIH GFARR
mission activities expenses) fEepEEISZ ) 2,529,351
Variable lease payments not included in the T ABREARITEZ I EHEE
measurement of lease liabilities (included in T GtAEMEEETH)
other operating expenses) 182,335
Total amount recognised in profit or loss FiREPHINZ BEFN 4,782,536
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14. Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(d)

(e)

Variable lease payments

The Group has a lease contract for an office equipment
that contains variable payments based on the meter rate of
additional printout. The term is negotiated by management for
the office equipment that is used to print without steady usage.
Management’s objective is to align the lease expense with the
additional printout. The following provides information on the
Group's variable lease payments, including the magnitude in
relation to fixed payments:

SElSIREME

14. AT &)

KERAFAEEAN (1)

(d) FIEAEMER
FEFTE—MHATRENERS
4> Hha S RIBAMIMTENRNEE
T EONRIEIR o« ZERE
ERBETENEH TIEERENDA
EREETE - EEERZENZHEHER
S H S ESNTENEAEXIAR "F%‘Eh%ﬁ%
AXRAEANAEHENRZ AR
BEAXEENRZEE

Fixed Variable
payments payments Total
ERANEN B AIRR 23t
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Fixed rent EEHE 156,000 = 156,000
Variable rent only NZ (AL FEE - 63,915 63,915
156,000 63,915 219,915

In addition, the Group leased a warehouse which contains a
variable lease payment term that is based on the Group’s storage
per carton box in the warehouse. The amount of the variable
lease payments recognised in profit or loss for the current year
for the lease is HK$118,420.

The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 25(c) to the
consolidated financial statements.

tESh > AEFBA—INRE 0 HAY
BERBEAEATERECAS N RFEE
FEMTENA THEEMRBIER
MAFENEEERZPMIAZATE
FASE(IRN118,4208 7T ©

(e) MEMNIUSRHBIEGEMSIRE
PtiE25(cIIEE ©

A9 2019/20 4R
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14.

W S HARMEE

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases certain buildings (note 13) in Hong Kong under
operating lease arrangements. The terms of the leases also require
the tenants to pay a security deposit. Rental income recognised by the
Group during the year was HK$257,235,797 (2019: HK$261,971,587),
details of which are included in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements.

At the end of the reporting period, the undiscounted lease payments
receivable by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable

14.

HE )

HERFEREEA

AEFARBEAEHARZHHBEESESET
B (E13) c MEZMAEXRERF X
NRIEE - ZAEFRATFTERNBIAZHEUW
A 79257,235,7977# 7t (20194 © 261,971,587
Brt) > BXREFBERTSEVMSIREMEL

TIREHR - AEFARESEAITIIFTH

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

BEELEE R T ARRAAE N A ARIT AR

operating leases with its tenants are as follows: IR -

2020 2019

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Within one year —FR 227,155,630 195,598,378
After one year but within two years —FFEHRERN 130,144,148 116,667,752
After two years but within three years MEFE=FER 66,130,531 47,618,780
After three years but within four years = FEBIEERN 15,430,218 16,775,545
After four years but within five years WEEERERN 9,538,220 =
After five years EER 49,965,009 -
498,363,756 376,660,455
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The above equity investments were irrevocably designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income as the Group considers these
investments to be strategic in nature.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group did not recognise any
dividend income (2019: Nil) from the equity investments held at the end
of the reporting period.

The above debt investment was a hybrid contract consisting of a bond
and an embedded derivative. It was mandatorily classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss as its contractual cash flows
are not solely payments of principal and interest.

To further extend the Group's entrepreneurial support to scalable
start-ups, the Group has launched the CMF for Hong Kong-based
digital entrepreneurs in 2017. With an initial size of HK$200 million,
the CMF aims to accelerate the growth of digital technology start-ups.
As an investment fund that targets to co-invest in Cyberport digital
entrepreneurs with other private and public investors as seed to Series
A stage funding, the CMF also aims to encourage the development of a
venture capital ecosystem for start-ups in Hong Kong.

FEWSIRERME
15. Cyberport macro fund investments 15. BB ARCNUESIZE
2020 2019
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Equity investments designated at fair value  ISERAAMEITAEM
through other comprehensive income 2EREZ R E
- Unlisted equity investments, at fair value — JEEMRAER » BARNE 91,921,406 44,713,898
Debt investment at fair value through }ﬁ’z}ﬁ,{ﬂ{ﬁﬁ')\hm
profit or loss RE’E
- Unlisted debt investment, at fair value —FEEHESER > BAANE 7,846,694 10,152,211
99,768,100 54,866,109

HTAERINNZERRBRIEMER > ML
MR AR AN FEEMIEER R AN EITA
H W o

FTHE2020F3831BIEFE » KERFE
MIAR B IR EHRFAIFENREAREZEM
BB A (20194 : )

LSRR ANBRFRRARNITETASA
P RE ALY o HEGRHIDENRRAANE
HAREZ ERER » FRAEGONER
BHIFNASZINEEZRFE

M= MAFEEXN B B Bl 2 61
255 > RERFRTF2017FENEBEIL AR
BB AW EE - BIYBR A

BEEVIBRETN 1287t » STEMIREET
BHzeldl &R - (ENEES HMAMAK
AHBAEGHERE THID BRI B AIA
BN ERmEMT %‘&E%i%?xﬁmﬂﬁ%ﬁ)ﬂ
FRME BRI R R BRI 5 ESIF

15 o
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157



Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

Cyberport 2019/20 Annual Report

receivables are as follows:

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade

MWK RUREREZ T -

AN SRENE MR
16. Investments in securities 16. IEHFKRA 16. Investments in securities (continued) 16. IEHFKRE )
2020 2019 (b) Investments at fair value through profit or loss (b) HERARMEITARBEZIEE
HK$ HK$ 2020 2019
BT BT HK$ HK$
BT Bt
Non-current assets JERBh &
Financial assets at amortised cost IRPERE AT W > SR 84,074,954 70,830,649 Listed fixed interest debt securities: EHEERERSBIES -
- In Hong Kong —HBEA 249,367,429 191,439,070
Current assets MENE - Outside Hong Kong — BB 351,773,574 248,081,875
Financial assets at amortised cost PR AN 2 SRAZE - 151,266,273 Unlisted but quoted fixed interest debt  FJE_EMEBRNEEF EHBIES
Investments at fair value through profit or loss A AMEIT AR 2R E 708,251,929 529,197,175 securities 107,110,926 89,676,230
708,251,929 680,463,448 708,251,929 529,197,175
Total 2it 792,326,883 751,294,097
17. Trade receivables 17. RZYSMEER
(a) Financial assets at amortised cost (@) IRPETHAASTIM 2 ERE 2020 01
2020 2019 HK$ HK$
HK$ HK$ BT BT
BT BT
Trade receivables N W T =k 19,829,455 11,047,174
Listed fixed interest debt securities in & _EHEERN BESIES Impairment BE (48,507) (60,908)
Hong Kong 84,074,954 222,096,922
19,780,948 10,986,266
The net book amount is analysed as WEREDTUWT :
follows: The credit period given to customers is generally 0 to 30 days. The B[FEFP ZERB—RN0EIXK - mEH
Maturing over one year F—F L EFIE 84,074,954 70,830,649 Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables T2 B AR I B R U [B] 2 W7 GRS 51
Maturing within one year F— =R - 151,266,273 to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly XLfEERIE - BHAERHSRAEERER
by senior management. The Group does not hold any collateral or HiE o RERHTMENWIKRERITFAEE
i i ) O S AT = 5 4E HE o R M
84,074,954 222.096.922 other credit enhancement over its trade receivable balances. Trade iﬂi\&%ﬁuuizﬁmﬁ,\fm/\kﬂ}aﬁm o7 Lt
receivables are non-interest-bearing. HARE ©
Market value of listed debt securities EHERBSEEZHE 86,550,506 222,235,600

2020 2019
HK$ HK$
BT Bt
At beginning of year E4 60,908 815,509
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) WILVRETSHR (fiFe) 48,507 48,658
Impairment losses reversed (note 6) KERESIR (M) (60,908) (803,259)
At end of year FXR 48,507 60,908
L 2019/20 FEIR
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17.

W S HARMEE

Trade receivables (continued)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using
a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision
rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region,
product type, customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of
credit or other forms of credit insurance). The calculation reflects the
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable
and supportable information that is available at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions. Generally, trade receivables are written off if past due for

more than one year and are not subject to enforcement activity.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the

Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix:

17. BZURMER (40

FERATERE BRERKEBEEEITRE
I BUTEFTHRERSH « WEXTHIRIE
BRELURL BHEHIEAIE ~ ol
FR R RUREREREMP R Z(E
RRRZEBERE) 22 MEFRDEANZ
BHAREMETE © ZITERMEER AR -
KM EMEN KR TR E BRI RS A XY
FEEH ~ HAPRRRRELFRRITNZ &
RS EE o —fRME » MUK B
H—FEAZRBHIHITRME > MF LU

LU 2578 X 7 5= E i W R 65 FR ¥ & AE P
ZIERNRER

As at 31 March 2020 F20205%3H31H
Past due
LY
Less than One to three Over three

Current one month months months Total

ENHA LF—-1H —E=1A Bg=1A Bit

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

BT BT B BT BT

Expected credit loss rate MHE R TIREK 0% 0% 0% 1.63% 0.24%
Gross carrying amount (HK$)  IKEEE GBrT) 12,610,432 2,207,493 2,040,480 2,971,050 19,829,455
Expected credit losses (HK$)  FAEAERSH (Bt) - - - 48,507 48,507

As at 31 March 2019 F20194%3H31H
Past due
g1
Less than One to three Over three

Current one month months months Total

BDEA LF—1B —ZE=1A BE="A Bt

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

BT BT BT BT BT

Expected credit loss rate MEAE R TIRE 0% 0% 0% 7.42% 0.55%
Gross carrying amount (HK$)  TKEEE GBrT) 8,324,098 1,173,440 728,664 820,972 11,047,174
Expected credit losses (HK$) MEAE S/ (Bo) - - - 60,908 60,908

Cyberport 2019/20 Annual Report
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18. Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

SElSIREME

18, FRATRRIN ~ 4% Ko H Bz YL rR B

2020 2019
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Prepayments FAAS FRIN 2,882,951 4,661,026
Lease incentives HEMIE 19,649,943 =
Prepayments and deposits paid for the AL ~ HBR IR EFI B 2 7
purchase of items of property, plant and 2RI R &
equipment 16,600,613 12,940,534
Deposits paid for premises leasing YA ELN e 685,008 685,008
Deposit paid for Cyberport Macro Fund RS ER B E SR AT
investment - 14,129,730
Other deposits Hiz s 2,307,583 1,812,956
Other receivables E th iz R Im 7,387,921 14,525,779
49,514,019 48,755,033
Analysed into: DI
Non-current portion IERTHER 22,999,823 27,755,272
Current portion SRBNERD 26,514,196 20,999,761
49,514,019 48,755,033

Impairment of deposits and other receivables

The carrying amount of deposits and other receivables approximated
to their fair value as at 31 March 2020 and 2019. Their recoverability
was assessed with reference to the credit status of the debtors, and the
expected credit losses as at 31 March 2020 and 2019 were considered
to be minimal.

B R ELh 7 Rk 2 R B

F20205F /2019438318 » & KR HM
WRIZz KEESHAARNERE - HA
WEMETYZE RS AZEERRITE > T
2020 £ 201943831 B 2 F A Y S
MAE -

A9 2019/20 4R
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19. Cash and bank balances 19. MERIIRITEF
2020 2019
HK$ HK$
BT Bt
Cash and bank balances MERIETER 109,010,217 163,526,258
Non-pledged time deposit with an original FHRENRIIEBHA DT
maturity of less than three months when = NBZEIRREHER
acquired 308,565,862 125,597,600
Non-pledged time deposits with original FTRENREIHEN=1T8
maturity of more than three months when M EZ IR EHRFER
acquired - 358,873,875
417,576,079 647,997,733

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods of
between one months and one year depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earns interest at the respective time
deposit rates. The bank balances and time deposits are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

Cyberport 2019/20 Annual Report

RITHERIES BRITERFRLOLFIR
BREXF B o EMIERMF A ERHZ BRI
EFRME > FRABRNF—PRE—FF
% HAURBZERERFRBEF S - B
TEERERERFALRHTELIERE
EERFZET

20. Other payables and accruals

20. HEfth IRkt 25 A

2020 2019
Notes HK$ HK$
B E BT BT
Contract liabilities BYHNER (a) 2,528,683 1,979,225
Other payables B R RRIN (b) 1,387,502 5,870,554
Accruals 73t 2% A 83,753,225 118,221,334
Receipt in advance FRM R I 2,424,808 6,488,582
Government grants TNk 2,555,800 -
Provisions ®E 8,782,332 15,599,100
101,432,350 148,158,795
Notes: 5 p=
(a) Details of contract liabilities are as follows: (@ BHRCIFENT
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 1 April 2018
2020%3H31H 201943831H 2018548 1H
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT B
Short-term advances received A% P UER 2 FEHE Rk
from customers
Income from hotel operation BEBBWA 2,528,683 1,979,225 3,302,947

The increase in contract liabilities in 2020 was mainly due to the increase
in short-term advances received from customers at the end of the year.
The decrease in contract liabilities in 2019 was mainly due to the decrease
in short-term advances received from customers at the end of the prior

year.

(b) Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average term of (b) HMNARIMARE » FHRA=NA ©

three months.

F2020FE B9 HEIEN > TEHTFAER
UER Z S HR B A T EE SR IO R © F2019
FEANGRL  TERTRAZFKEZ
RHRBRRT EFEARBDFE ©

A9 2019/20 4R
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21.

22.

23.

On 28 February 2018, the HKSAR Government announced a funding
injection of HK$300 million to Cyberport for the new initiatives in
respect of strengthening the support to its tenants/incubatees, and
promoting the development of e-Sports in Hong Kong, as covered in the
Financial Secretary’'s 2018/19 Budget Speech.

On 12 September 2018, 300,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company of
$1 each were issued and allotted to the immediate holding company in
consideration of the injection of an aggregate sum of HK$300 million
into the Company.

Cyberport 2019/20 Annual Report

W S5 HRERMGE
Rental and other deposits 21. HEKkHEMZE
Included in rental deposits are amounts of HK$49,888,836 (2019: HERSEEEAT —FREMZHRIN
HK$57,040,472) which are not expected to be settled within one year. 49,888,836 7T (20194F : 57,040,47287T) °
Development maintenance fund 22. RKE#EES
It represents a fund received by the Group in accordance with the ZMEETEAEFARBARAILR « BiEE
terms of a project agreement entered into among the Company, the f&/A 5] ~ HKCADL ~ BB EILsh H B RAE]
immediate holding company, HKCADL, Pacific Century Cyberworks (MMBABBBERAT) RANBFRA
Limited (now renamed as PCCW Limited) and Cyber-Port Limited on 17 2] F20005F58 178 FR&3T 2 #AS 1t X th
May 2000 (the “Project Agreement”). Pursuant to the Project Agreement, W TR Z ZRFTWERZ EE o 1B
the purpose of the fund is for upkeep and maintenance of the common BIZIT NI ZIE & B E R REEM
telecommunications, media and information technology facilities MPRIFEERZ AR ~ B AERZFAR
available to the tenants and visitors (the “Shared Cyberport facilities"). FIgnE (“HDBHERIRHE) ©
Upon acquisition of relevant assets for replacements, the costs of the RIBAERAZ 2ITEE » FWEBEXZ~U
acquired assets will be transferred from the Development Maintenance EBE » EMEBRF ZHANEBEEE
Fund (the "DMF") account to the Capital Reserve account in accordance & “RBEBER) WRRIEEALMES
with the Group's accounting policy. M o
During the year, the Shared Cyberport facilities of HK$6,612,928 (2019: F RN & B 966129288 7T (20194 ©
HK$1,476,022) were acquired and funded by the DMF. Accordingly, this 1,476,022787T) 2 HIDBHARKEHLERE
amount has been transferred from the DMF to the Capital Reserve HEEETMEHRHERSE - AL > ZERM
account. EMNEBEBREERIEERREEWKS o
Share capital 23. &7
2020 2019
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Issued and fully paid: BERITRERE :
300,000,002 (2019: 300,000,002) 300,000,0028% (20194 :
ordinary shares 300,000,00288) iEAG 300,000,002 300,000,002

F20185F2828H > VBB Al K A&k =
2018/19F E (MHMEZE) F » FBRFXIR
FEREEEEETR=2ETT » UBEEE
EITINRSZEERF RIS AR ZHEH
FETEBELR o

F20185F98 128 » KRB A EZERAE]
K{THEC 300,000,000 FREE—BTZ
ZER > FARRAEEARE=ZETZ
KA ©

24.

25.

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

Reserves

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for
the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity.

Notes to the consolidated statement of cash flows

(a) Major non-cash transactions

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities of HK$284,416 and HK$284,416,
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for office
equipment and storage area (2019: Nil).

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
2020

24,

25.

SElSIREME

&
FERATAEERSEFEZ BESTRE

T2 FHRaNm TEx

GANSRERME
(@) FEIFNMERS
FER » AEFRDAERERMEE
X2 HEZHEFERNEATZIENE
RBRBEERRD S 0284,4168 TR
2844167877 (20195 1 &) o

(b) REZEFFR=ERGRLER
20204

Government
grants included
in other payables

and accruals Lease liabilities

T AEMR T
RN e B2 1t 2% F
Z BB HERRK
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At 31 March 2019 F201943H831H - -
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 RNE B SIREEN
F165 2 M - 8,486,897
At 1 April 2019 (restated) F2019F4818 (FF) - 8,486,897
Changes from financing cash flows MANMERBLD) 2,555,800 (1,874,773)
New leases AR - 284,416
Interest expense FMEZH - 154,787
Interest paid classified as operating PDEANZENEREZENAFE
cash flows - (154,787)
At 31 March 2020 F2020%F3H31H 2,555,800 6,896,540
ELE 2019/20 ik
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SElSIRENE

25. Notes to the consolidated statement of cash flows
(continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
(continued)

25. ZERTRERME @

(b) RFBEEFAIFERGRER (40

2019 20195
Government
grants included Obligations
in other payables under a
and accruals finance lease
TEAE AR AT
I M7 11 2% R
Z BB RS B ARE
HK$ HK$
BT AT
At 1 April 2018 F2018%F481H 320,035 1,577,476
Changes from financing cash flows AN RELE (320,035) (1,577,476)

At 31 March 2019 F201943831H
(c) Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the consolidated
statement of cash flows is as follows:

() HEZVERHDEG

HAGEUEREXRZBEEN TR

SEE

2020
HK$
BT

Within operating activities

Within financing activities

Cyberport 2019/20 Annual Report

FELERNN
ERECAVE I[N

2,866,473
1,874,773

4,741,246

(a)

(b)

26. Commitments

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

The Group had the following capital commitments at the

end of the reporting period.

SElSIREME

Contracted, but not provided for

Operating lease commitments as at 31 March 2019

BITAERKE

The Group leases its information technology facilities and office

premises under operating lease arrangements. Leases for these

facilities and property are negotiated for terms ranging from one

to six years.

At 31 March 2019, the Group had total future minimum lease

payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as

follows:

Within one year

In the second to fifth years, inclusive

26. #3E
(a) FTEATFIRGHAERBEUTEREK
8o
2020 2019
HK$ HK$
BT BT
68,100,956 75,501,010
(b) F2019F3H31HZAREHE K
1|
FEFRIEAERELHHEETENE
FIRHERE T AEZE IR
WALFTIE Z FREAN F—F EREFR
&%,
F2019F3831H » REHRRIEART
BIEAERENRARREREMARD
MEHERAT -
2019
HK$
BT
—FR 3,870,268
FEZERF (BIEEERE) 6,627,489
10,497,757
AT 2019/20 F4R
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217.

Related party transactions

(a)

The Company is wholly owned by the Government of the HKSAR
via The Financial Secretary Incorporated. In accordance with
revised HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures issued by the HKICPA,
government-related entities and their subsidiaries, directly or
indirectly controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced
by the Government of the HKSAR are defined as related parties
of the Group. On that basis, related parties include the immediate
holding company and its subsidiaries (other than the Company),
other government-related entities and their subsidiaries, other
entities and corporations in which the Group is able to control or
exercise significant influence and key management personnel of
the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, approximately 3%
(2019: 3%) of the Group's revenue was rental income, building
management income and other facilities income derived from
the Government of the HKSAR and other government-related
entities. All these services are conducted in the normal course of
business and in accordance with the Group's pricing policy.

The balances with the immediate holding company and fellow
subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

Details of the compensation of the key management personnel
of the Group in respect of their services rendered to the Group
are disclosed in notes 7 and 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Cyberport 2019/20 Annual Report

217.

REHR 5
() FABRAEBHEBFEIMEEG

KEHZ2HRIA - RIBFE TR
=Bz AEITEERITENF24S
KEAREZAE > NEEBFXE
FEZZEEES - £EERHEH
BEAREMZ BFEXEERERER
8 BRENRERZ KET  1RIE
TEM > KKK BEEERERAR K
HIFB AR (&RRBFRIN ~ EfthET
BRREREMBAE « REREE
IS AT BN E RS 00 2 EfhSE e b
WARAERAZ TEZEEAR ©

B E2020F3831HIEFE» kBE
BRXEA R EMBFEXLSEZ
FASWA ~ BFEBERAKREMIEH
WAL A EF A Z3% (20194 :
3%) o FTAZERSHIEER ST
AR ARERAZ ENBERHT ©

SEEZERABRARNB AR ZLE
RITATIRR  RERIZEREIE -

REHATEEEARARERRER
SMRZ N ZMEFBEESES MR
RMET 8% E o

28.

Financial instruments by category

at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

31 March 2020

Financial assets

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

SElSIREME

28. BEFIMOHEMIA

EXEMTATREBFRZKABNT :

20205%3H31H

ERFEF

Financial
assets at

fair value
through other
comprehensive

Financial assets at fair

income value through profit or loss
BRARNETA .
HREKEY BAAMETTAREZ
ERR= SRR~
Financial
Mandatorily assets at
Equity designated Debt amortised
investments as such investment cost Total
BT R AT ‘
(s bl HRERA ZERAEF 2it
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Deferred rental receivables — BEMN TS - - 7,274,144 7,274,144
Cyberport Macro Fund AR ROV ESEA
investments 91,921,406 - 7,846,694 - 99,768,100
Investments in securities EHRA - 708,251,929 84,074,954 792,326,883
Trade receivables Rz U R - - 19,780,948 19,780,948
Financial assets included in ~ JFATUEIN « BEK
prepayments, deposits and  EWILEIZ
other receivables SRAE - - 11,914,566 11,914,566
Amounts due from fellow I GE RIEYN=ENI
subsidiaries - - 3,293,234 3,293,234
Cash and bank balances NERETEE - - - 417,576,079 417,576,079
91,921,406 708,251,929 7,846,694 543,913,925 1,351,933,954
Financial liabilities RIS
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
MR AT Z
ERH G
HK$
BT
Trade payables NATER 41,976,221
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals T AE MRS SRR R 1T 28 B 2 S R 91,473,312
Rental and other deposits HekEMZEE 94,797,218
Amount due to the immediate holding company R BRERARZIN 254,293,578
Lease liabilities HRMGR 6,896,540
489,436,869
ELE 2019/20 ik 169
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28. Financial instruments by category (continued)

31 March 2019

Financial assets

28. #HFFRDOMEMTE
2019538318
SRIAR

Financial assets

at fair value
through other
comprehensive Financial assets at fair
income value through profit or loss
BRAAMNEITA
Htt2 ARG BRAANMETAREZ
ERAF ERA
Financial
Mandatorily assets at
Equity designated Debt amortised
investments as such investment cost Total
REE AT
AR REUSENEZLR RERA ZEMA Bt
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS
BT BT BT BT BT
Deferred rental receivables BN WS - - - 8,503,155 8,503,155
Cyberport Macro Fund HEARROVESRE
investments 44,713,898 = 10,152,211 = 54,866,109
Investments in securities ESKRA = 529,197,175 = 222,096,922 751,294,097
Trade receivables RUKER - - - 10,986,266 10,986,266
Financial assets included in ARSI ~ e K
prepayments, deposits and HR 2
other receivables ESRA - - - 17,724,883 17,724,883
Amount due from a fellow Wl GEA VNS
subsidiary - - - 261,000 261,000
Cash and bank balances NeRRT%%E - - - 647,997,733 647,997,733
44,713,898 529,197,175 10,152,211 907,569,959 1,491,633,243
Financial liabilities R
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
RREERATIK
Ea Y
HK$
BT
Trade payables R R 28,514,375
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals T AE R AT IR Rt 2 2 & Rafh 136,566,404
Rental and other deposits HekEMZES 82,132,286
Amount due to the immediate holding company AT E TR AT ZIM 254,293,578
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary IERIEEN N EYASERIT 192,321
Deferred rental payable BRI E 222775
501,921,739
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Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably
approximate to fair values, are as follows:

SElSIREME

29. EMIAZAANMERAIANESE

&

AEFATHTAZKEEBERAANE (WE
BEAANERBREEZERMITARIN) W
T

Carrying amounts Fair values
TR E & RANE
2020 2019 2020 2019
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Financial assets ERIE
Equity investments designated e AMMNME
at fair value through other TAEMEME
comprehensive income iR Z GG H 91,921,406 44,713,898 91,921,406 44,713,898
Debt investment at fair value BARNEITA
through profit or loss @2 BmEEE 7,846,694 10,152,211 7,846,694 10,152,211
Investments in securities IEHR AR 792,326,883 751,294,097 794,802,435 751,432,775

892,094,983

806,160,206 894,570,535 806,298,884

The Group has assessed that the fair values of deferred rental
receivables, trade receivables, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, cash and bank balances, balances with
fellow subsidiaries and the immediate holding company, trade payables,
financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals, rental and
other deposits, and a deferred rental payable approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in
a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or
liguidation sale. The following method and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair value:

The fair values of the lease liabilities have been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities. The changes in fair values as a result of the Group's own
non-performance risk for lease liabilities as at 31 March 2020 were
assessed to be insignificant.

AEF S IEBIEN WS « MUK ~ 3t
AT ~ $#28 Je AW WIKRR 2 = B 28
= NERRTERT  SRAEMBARKRE
BERAB ZER ~ AWK » it ARME
R NIt 22 ER A 5~ R H At
BEURBIENNEEZ AANESHIKE
EEE  T2RTERZETIATEHRRNEIE -

AT REBAGRZAANEUTES B
B GRIABZBENERIN #HITZHARS
PR T ENSIAM » FHIHERRIRA
FTRETRANE :

EEHGRZARMETERIE RISHAZ
LR EENMR AR TERNITRZA
Ko BIARRNEREFIMITE - B4
EH 45 F2020F38 31 H LA & f A B
R EL R T~ ERN R AN ELEHRITE
HNAREK
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29.

W S HARMEE

Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments (continued)

The fair value of an unlisted equity investment designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income as at 31 March 2020 has
been estimated using the market-based valuation technique based on
assumptions that are not supported by observable market prices or
rates. The valuation requires the Directors to determine comparable
public companies (peers) based on industry, size, leverage and strategy,
and to calculate an appropriate price multiple, such as price to sales
("P/S") multiple, for each comparable company identified. The multiple
is calculated by dividing the enterprise value of the comparable
company by sales measure. The Directors believe that the estimated
fair value resulting from the valuation technique, which is recorded
in the consolidated statement of financial position, and the related
change in fair value, which is recorded in other comprehensive income,
is reasonable, and that it was the most appropriate value at the end of
the reporting period. The fair values of the remaining unlisted equity
investments designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income as at 31 March 2020 have been estimated using the recent
market transaction price.

The fair values of unlisted equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income as at 31 March 2019 have been
estimated using the recent market transaction price.

The fair values of an unlisted debt investment at fair value through
profit or loss as at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019 have been
estimated using a binomial tree pricing model based on assumptions
that are not supported by observable market prices or rates. The
valuation requires the Directors to make estimates about the expected
future cash flows discounted at the interest. The Directors believe that
the estimated fair value resulting from the valuation technique, which
is recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position, and the
related changes in fair value, which are recorded in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, are reasonable, and that they were the most
appropriate values at the end of the reporting period.

The fair values of listed debt investments are based on quoted market
prices.
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29.

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments (continued)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the valuation
of financial instruments together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis
as at 31 March 2020 and 2019:

As at 31 March 2020

29.

SElSIREME

EMITRAZARNMERARNES
& (5)

LU R F 20204 20193831 B &/t T
BfEZEATIMEREHATIEREERTE
ERREDNT

F2020F3H31H

Valuation Significant Sensitivity of fair
technique unobservable input Amount value to the input
HER* BRI A IR &0 RANMENAAREBEZBRE
Unlisted equity Valuation P/S multiple of peers 2.2x 1% increase/decrease in multiple
investment multiples would result in increase/decrease
in fair value by HK$23,000/
HK$23,000
I LA fEEEE PSS 2008 {EHET TR SEARMNES
./ 23,0007 23,0007 7T
Discount for lack 20% 1% increase/decrease in discount

of marketability

RZ i REE ik

The discount for lack of marketability represents the amounts of
premiums and discounts determined by the Group that market
participants would take into account when pricing the investments.

would result in decrease/increase

in fair value by HK$8,000/HK$8,000
BFHER  TEI%RESHRAANER

b/ 12108,0007 7T 8,000/ 7T

BRZmpRaE It ErEREE TR S

S5EENBREENH=EERENRITILS
A o
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29. Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial 29. EMTHRAZAANERAINNES
instruments (continued) & (1)

As at 31 March 2020 (continued)

F2020F3H31H (&)

Valuation Significant
technique unobservable input Amount

HEASZE ERFAMREALKIE i

Sensitivity of fair
value to the input

RARANENEABEZHRE

Unlisted debt Binomial Credit spread 14.65%
investment tree pricing
model
FFEMRESIKA Z I EREE
ENE
Risk free rate 0.38%
TR PLFI=
Risky rate 15.03%
A=
Volatility 61.42%
DTS

Cyberport 2019/20 Annual Report

1% increase/decrease in credit spread
would result in decrease/increase in
fair value by HK$16,000/HK$16,000

EREELH/ THI%ESRAANE
HZL /18 1016,000587T 16,000/ 7T

1% increase/decrease in risk free rate
would result in decrease/increase in
fair value by HK$1,000/HK$1,000

ERBEFZE EFH / TER1%E SR R2 M
B /101,000 71,0008 7T

1% increase/decrease in risky rate
would result in decrease/increase in
fair value by HK$16,000/HK$16,000

RPEFZE EFH / FTEIBRE SR ARMNE
L/ 18 1016,0005 7T /16,0007 7T

1% increase/decrease in volatility would
result in increase/decrease in fair
value by HK$16,000/HK$16,000

WohE LR/ TEI%ESHAANEE
0/ 16,0008 7c 16,0008 7T

29. Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial

instruments (continued)

As at 31 March 2019

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

SElSIREME

29. ERMTEAZARNMERARNESE
& (&)

F2019F3H31H

Valuation Significant Sensitivity of fair
technique unobservable input Amount value to the input
(VP BRI M ALIE e RANENHABEZBRE
Unlisted debt investment Binomial Credit spread 13.12% 1% increase/decrease in credit spread
tree pricing would result in decrease/increase in
model fair value by HK$24,000/HK$25,000
IE L RSEA ZImEl EREE EREELF/ TERIRRSRARMNE
EMNE HL / #1024,00078 7T 25,0008 7T
Risk free rate 2.07% 1% increase/decrease in risk free rate
would result in decrease/increase in
fair value by HK$166,000/HK$184,000
TR F]ZE TREFZE EFH FERI%FSEHA RN
BRI/ 1810166,00078 75 184,000
BT
Risky rate 15.19% 1% increase/decrease in risky rate
would result in decrease/increase in
fair value by HK$24,000/HK$25,000
PRI 2 RBEFZE EF/ TEI%R SR ARNE
HL / #1024,00078 7T 25,0008 7T
Volatility 48.13% 1% increase/decrease in volatility would
result in increase/decrease in fair
value by HK$1,000/HK$1,000
B WEE LTt/ TR SHARNEE

./ EZ 1,000, 1,000 70
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29.

Gl SHRRMDE

instruments (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of

the Group's financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 March 2020

Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial

29. EMIAEZARNERL2ANES 29.

& (s

DRNESTER
TRETFEFAEMTIAEZ AANETES
&

BARNMEITEZERS
F202053H31H

Fair value measurement using

AANERAUTEIITE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BERAME EAFANER
SRR IAIRM WALUE imAERIE
(B—4) (B=%) (B=%) 2it
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Equity investments BB RARNE
designated at fair TTAEMZE
value through other Wam 2 IR
comprehensive income - 89,486,760 2,434,646 91,921,406
Debt investment BARMEITA
at fair value through RmZ RERE
profit or loss - - 7,846,694 7,846,694
Investments in securities  IFHE R 601,141,003 107,110,926 - 708,251,929
601,141,003 196,597,686 10,281,340 808,020,029
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Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial

instruments (continued)

Assets measured at fair value: (continued)

As at 31 March 2019

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

SElSIREME

29. EMIAZAANMERAIANESE

& (5)
BARANMEITEZEF | (&)
F2019%3H31H

Fair value measurement using

RANMEXRBUTEIITE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BEAAME  EBAFAME
JEERTIZIRMN AR AR
(B—%) (B5=%) (B=%) 2t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Equity investments EERRARNE
designated at fair ITTAHMEE
value through other Wiz AR A
comprehensive income - 44,713,898 - 44,713,898
Debt investment BARNEITA
at fair value through R REREA
profit or loss - - 10,152,211 10,152,211
Investments in securities  JEHIE R 439,520,945 89,676,230 = 529,197,175
439,520,945 134,390,128 10,152,211 584,063,284
#0578 2019/20 &4k
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29.

Gl SHRRMDE

Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial 29.
instruments (continued)

Assets measured at fair value: (continued)

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 for financial assets (2019: Nil). The
movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 are as follows:

EMTEAZARNMERARNESE
R (1)

BARNETEZEE (&

ERX BERATTE ) E—RE5E K
BHEEBAARNEITE (20195 F) o
BE=BRNZAANEHETHNT

2020 2019
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Financial assets at fair value through other wBaamET A EtEEml s
comprehensive income or profit or loss: I 2 B RAAR T
At 1 April F4H1H 10,152,211 6,221,450
Transfer from Level 2 during the year FRNEE _LiEE 6,286,952 -
Transfer to Level 2 during the year FREAEZEE L - (6,221,450)
Total (loss)/gain recognised in the TFHREMARAINZ
consolidated statement of profit or loss () /W 25 (2,305,517) 340,024
Total loss recognised in FEMZEBRERIAZ SIREE
other comprehensive income (3,852,306) =
Purchase ) £ - 9,812,187
At 31 March F3H831H 10,281,340 10,152,211

Liabilities measured at fair value:
As at 31 March 2020

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value
as at 31 March 2020.

As at 31 March 2019

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value
as at 31 March 2019.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements

between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for
financial liabilities (2019: Nil).
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

30. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(a)

Financial risk factors

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise investments
in securities, equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, a debt investment at fair value through
profit or loss and cash and bank balances. The main purpose
of these financial instruments is to finance for the Group's
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
credit risk, equity price risk, liquidity risk and currency risk. The
Board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below.

Credit risk

All the Group's cash and cash equivalents are held in major
financial institutions located in Hong Kong, which management
believes are of high credit quality. The Group has policies in
place to evaluate credit risk when accepting new business and to
limit its credit exposure to individual customers.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, which
is mainly based on past due information unless other information
is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 March. For listed debt investments, the
Group also monitors them by using external credit ratings. The
amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial
assets.

SElSIREME

30. MESXKEEEBIRREE

(a)

el S ES
FEAZEEZETRTAGTEIESRKR
B BARNETARMEEREZ
RAERZE ~ AN ETT AR Z R
SRAURINERIBTET - ZFE
RIEZTEZENENFERHZEIE
RERE -

FEFATHMTAFEZETEZNMNE
X ~ RO XFL ~ SREh 3 & X K
EHNAK - EERFRERNEEESR
AR R KBS 2 BR » BRan T o

ERXE

FEFFMBEN S RNSESEMEEE
BMFERRANERERRFZER
T2 - FEHERIEBER
DU (s ah il 55 B 2 15 53 KU 52 PR
FIEMAZRENNER ZERNK

B o

i 50K FEAR B ER
T%Efﬁj—%ﬁ@ﬂ%‘fﬂl”Z%‘f
ZERkREEENKG (EERIEALH
RS H > BRIFE MBI S
ZRAHBHREIRET) » Uk T3
SIHZERDMEE DL - B LHEHES
BAMS » AERTMERINEMEETIT
RFITIEE - FTE2FV AN S RA
ZIKESE ©
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SElSIRENE
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30. Financial risk management objectives and policies 30. WMSXEEEBIRREER
(a) Financial risk factors (continued) () MSBRXEERZER (%)
Credit risk (continued) FEEXBE (4)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued) BEXRRERDTHESE (8)
As at 31 March 2020 F20204F3531H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
121 B A
ERSH 2HTHRERSHR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
M EE— M= M= [EiR(573 2it
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Debt investment at fair value BRAANEITARZZ
through profit or loss# REHRAH 7,846,694 - - - 7,846,694
Investments in securities# IEHRRH 792,326,883 - - - 792,326,883
Trade receivables* VA - - - 19,829,455 19,829,455
Deferred rental receivables# SEIERT W # 7,274,144 - - - 1,274,144
Financial assets included in AT R ~ ZE K
prepayments, deposits and HWm e
other receivables# ERATH 11,914,566 - - - 11,914,566
Amounts due from fellow I EEN)=YNSER
subsidiaries — RRBH
- Not yet past due 3,293,234 - - - 3,293,234
Cash and bank balances NERMRTEE
- Not yet past due — HRBH 417,576,079 - - - 417,576,079

1,240,231,600

19,829,455 1,260,061,055

(continued)

(a)

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

SElSIREME

30. Financial risk management objectives and policies 30. MSXEEEBIRREER 1
Financial risk factors (continued) () MSBRREER (%)
Credit risk (continued) S (42)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued) BEMNRRFERINESE (4R)
As at 31 March 2019 F201983H31H
12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
121 B Fs8
ERTM 2GRS M
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
ME— MmE= MmE= [Eikiny it
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Debt investment at fair value BRARNETAR@Z
through profit or loss# RE/TH 10,152,211 - - - 10,152,211
Investments in securities# IEHS R H# 751,294,097 - - - 751,294,097
Trade receivables* 7 e = - - 11047174 11,047,174
Deferred rental receivables# BRIERY WA S # 8,503,155 - - - 8,503,155
Financial assets included in TTAFUIRIN ~ e
prepayments, deposits and HEAR Rz
other receivables* ERIZE 17,724,883 - - - 17724883
Amount due from a fellow W E KB A BRI
subsidiary — HREER
- Not yet past due 261,000 = = = 261,000
Cash and bank balances NERBTEE
- Not yet past due — BREE 647,997,733 - - - 647997733
1,435,933,079 - - 11,047174 1,446,980,253
& For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified AL F R B ELREE 2 MUK

approach for impairment, information based on the provision matrix
is disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

# The credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be
“normal” when they are not past due and there is no information
indicating that the financial assets had a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of
the financial assets is considered to be "doubtful”.

Details in respect of the Group's exposure to credit risk

arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 17 to the

consolidated financial statements.

MME > RIELREEEITEZ AR
FTHEEMSIRERME17IREE ©

ERAFTZERREREHRER
BHERMETERES ZEHN
B2 B 4025 BAIA DU R B 18 A0 BT 45240
7 ER  BMEMATZERR
WA FIRE” o

ARAERANBIKRZ S5 N2 %
P TEREV SIRME17HEE
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SElSIRENE

30. Financial risk management objectives and policies 30. WMSXEEEBIRREER
(continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued) (@) MSBRPERER &)
Equity price risk [iitanilid
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity B th KB tE I 2 55 A A EFE X
securities decrease as a result of changes in the value of MNENIES 2 N EZ ) FEE 2 KBS o
underlying individual securities. The Group is exposed to equity F2020F3831H » XEFAEX 2 K&
price risk arising from individual equity investments classified MRAKRBDLENEER R AN ET
as equity investments designated at fair value through other AHMEEWRE 2 BRAEEZ AR
comprehensive income (note 15) as at 31 March 2020. IR (M5E15) ©
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 10% TRETTIRGHRATEFRKIEEKX
change in the fair values of the equity investments to which the X 2 AR B A RN ESLEEN0%
Group has significant exposure at the end of the reporting period, (FIEEMTERFATERITAML
with all other variables held constant and before any impact on RIS R MAT) 2 BRE ° UL D M
tax. For the purpose of this analysis, the impact is deemed to be ms » BRAEMBARNS R ANERHE
on the fair value reserve. FEX
Carrying
amount of Change
investments in equity*
KRRKEE Wz L rph*
HK$ HK$
T T
As at 31 March 2020 F2020E3831H
Unlisted equity investments: JELEMRRAGZE ©
- Equity investments designated — BB A RNMEITA
at fair value through other Hhemhimz
comprehensive income PG ARG H 91,921,406 9,192,141
As at 31 March 2019 F201943831H
Unlisted equity investments: JEEMRAKE
- Equity investments designated —IEERARMEITA
at fair value through other Hhemhime
comprehensive income PG ARG 44,713,898 4,471,390
3 Excluding accumulated losses 2 FEERITSM
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

30. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

(a)

Financial risk factors (continued)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet its
current obligations when they fall due. Prudent liquidity risk
management includes maintaining sufficient cash and the
availability of funding through operating cash flows and advance
from the immediate holding company.

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:

SElSIREME

30. MEXKBEBREEE

(a)

MSREER (&)

M EE NS

MR T ML IE A ERIREEREEIH
Z AR SZ XK - BEZRMAE
RNeEEGEEISENERERE
FERRAB ZBRAEF TR E K]
MEpRREE -

FEFZBREERERB AR
ZRENAREHRR > WIREFEBIE
& > LUBREERR KR AE

FR o

FEHTREARREGLRITIG
Mz e AGREIEERNT

2020
Repayable on
demand/less 1to Over
than 1 year 2 years 2 years Total
BERGE /
—FNTF —ERE AmEME 2it
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Trade payables IMERiEA 41,976,221 - - 41,976,221
Financial liabilities included in TTAE MBI
other payables and accruals NitERZ RN G 91,473,312 - - 91,473,312
Rental and other deposits A kEMZE 44,908,382 21,643,443 28,245,393 94,797,218
Amount due to the immediate RS B R A BRI
holding company 254,293,578 - - 254,293,578
Lease liabilities BEM G 2,030,670 1,981,920 3,117,080 7,129,670
434,682,163 23,625,363 31,362,473 489,669,999
#0578 2019/20 &4k
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SElSIRENE

30. Financial risk management objectives and policies 30. WMSXEEEBIRREER

(continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued) () MSBRXEERZER (%)
Liquidity risk (continued) TMENZEERE (42)
2019
Repayable on
demand/less 1to Over
than 1 year 2 years 2 years Total
BERRE/
—EMUTF —ER|E REL £ Bit
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Trade payables RIS TR 28,514,375 - - 28,514,375
Financial liabilities included in TTAE MR
other payables and accruals RitBEz S/ %R 136,566,404 - - 136,566,404
Rental and other deposits e kEMES 25,091,814 25,956,248 31,084,224 82,132,286
Amount due to the immediate
holding company RS B R AT 254,293578 - - 254,293578
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary IVENBE M =YNGIE O 192,321 - - 192,321
Deferred rental payable pEHIgVANEE 46,900 46,900 128,975 222,775
444,705,392 26,003,148 31,213,199 501,921,739
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30. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

31.

(a)

(b)

Financial risk factors (continued)
Currency risk

The Group's functional currency is HK$. The Group is exposed to
currency risk primarily through investments in securities that are
denominated in another currency, being primarily United States
dollars (“USD"). As the HK$ is pegged to the USD, the Group
considers the risk of movements in exchange rates between the
HK$ and the USD to be insignificant.

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for shareholder and benefits for
other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure
to reduce the cost of capital. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the
year.

Capital of the Group comprises all components of shareholder’s
equity. Management reviews the capital structure periodically
and manages its overall capital structure if necessary. As at 31
March 2020 and 2019, the Group was in a net cash position.

Comparative amounts

As further explained in note 2.2 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group adopted HKFRS 16 on 1 April 2019 using the
modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the comparative

amounts in the consolidated financial statements were not restated

and continued to be reported under the requirements of the previous

standard, HKAS 17, and related interpretations.

30.

Sl

SElSIREME

MEXEERBIRREER (9

(a)

(b)

MSREER (&)

B XS

REFZNEELIHNBTT ° AERAK
BZEMNREEREUS -5
(FENZETD) IHMEZIESFERE - BT
BLSETEN  AEHINNETS
ETZBRPCERTERHRLRAK o

REER

REARAEERZ TEBRARER
ERAREEE IS NMARKT
SRR B N EHAhS D& HRRE - H
R RIBIRZ BAEEN > DUBDAAE
PR o R RAAEEZ BF - BR
HEFHEERTD) ©

NERZ BRACIER RN G 2 a5
Do BEEETHRITEREN » F1E
PVENBAEE SRR RLEN o AEH
F202045F K2019F3831H & F I
BHRIIRT ©

EEiE T

WiR & SIRERME2. 208 — 5 fRIR » KE
FAF2019F4 81 BEREEITEMEARNE
B SIREENF 165 © RIBILSE » HRE
WEIRERAZ LB FHAED - MALEIR
IBICHVEN ~ FEIENFE17S RAEX1E
BRIIR o
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SElSIRENE SElSIREME

32. FERBAMSKAE
FABMSRRERTFREARZ AT

32. Statement of financial position of the company 32. Statement of financial position of the company (continued) ~ 32. AATMSZRKRR @

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at

the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2020 2019
HK$ HK$
2020 2019 o~ -
HK$ HK$
BT BT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES JETREN T 15
Development maintenance fund RBHEERES 390,999,654 397,612,582
AR A Sl Deferred rental payable BEM S - 222,775
Property, plant and equipment Wl ~ MR 2,834,964,584 2,869,506,312 Lerss lelilitEs AEfAE 4,955,359 -
Right-of-use assets fBRANE 6,606,435 -
Deferred rental receivables IBIENY WaAE & 7,274,144 8,503,155 Total non-current liabilities JEFREN T B SR 395,955,013 397,835,357
Investments in securities IES15% 7 84,074,954 70,830,649
Investment in a subsidiary B A B 1 1 Net assets BERE 3,337,767,867 3.469,862,069
Prepayments and deposits TS TR B 42 22,999,823 13,625,542 EQUITY W
Total non-current assets JERD A BEN 2,955,919,941 2,962,465,659 Share capitl e 200,000,002 R
Reserves (note) fifgg (MHE) 3,037,767,865 3,169,862,067
CURRENT ASSETS TREN R =
— — 319,821 37401 Total equity e 25 3,337,767,867 3,469,862,069
Trade receivables 97 LTI R 19,780,948 10,986,266
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables — FR{SERIN - %< K H fth 57 W R IR 26,514,196 20,999,761
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries I EEN W =NGE#D 3,293,234 261,000
Amounts due from subsidiaries 7 W 8 /A B =R 96,590,998 57,477,503
Investments in securities NEHR A 708,251,929 680,463,448
Cash and bank balances BITRINEEE 417,692,361 647,997,733
Total current assets RO RFE DA 1,272,243,487 1,418,523,122
CURRENT LIABILITIES En T
Trade payables VAN TN 41,976,221 28,514,375 Lee George LAM Victor NG Chi-keung
Other payables and accruals HAR7 AT BRI f7 3+ 25 A 101,432,350 148,158,795 HRAL EER
Rental and other deposits HELEMES 94,797,218 82,132,286 Director Director
Amount due to the immediate holding company K71 B 31218 /A B 2R IR 254,293,578 254,293,578 2 BE
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary NAS—BlR R KB A BRI - 192,321
Lease liabilities HENR 1,941,181 -
Total current liabilities Vit syl 494,440,548 513,291,355
NET CURRENT ASSETS BN A E 777,802,939 905,231,767
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES &/ BEURREN A 5 3,733,722,880 3,867,697,426
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

SElSIRENE

32. Statement of financial position of the company (continued) ~ 32. FATMSKRER @)

Note: B
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: KABEEZHENT :
Capital Accumulated

reserve losses Total

BAEE it Bit

HK$ HK$ HK$

BT BT BT

At 1 April 2018 F2018%F481H 5,366,157,807 (2,123,100,341) 3,243,057,466

Loss and total comprehensive loss FRSHREEET RSN

for the year - (74,671,421) (74,671,421)
Transfer from development maintenance HEBEBESRIRERAES

fund to capital reserve 1,476,022 - 1,476,022

At 31 March 2019 and at 1 April 2019 F2019FE3831HR20195481H 5,367,633,829 (2,197,771,762) 3,169,862,067

Loss and total comprehensive loss FRTHREEZES RS

for the year = (138,707,130) (138,707,130)
Transfer from development maintenance HAEBEBESRIRERAES

fund to capital reserve 6,612,928 - 6,612,928

At 31 March 2020 F20205E3831H 5,374,246,757 (2,336,478,892) 3,037,767,865

. . . S 4 AT A2
33. Approval of the consolidated financial statements 33. HELSEMSIRE

ZEVSIRET2020F7H30B K EEH X
HEHFRI LW o

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 July 2020.
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